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Letter to Shareholders and Stakeholders 
 

Dear Shareholders and Stakeholders, 

We extend our deepest gratitude for your trust and for making our public listing a resounding success. 
Your confidence inspires us to push the boundaries of technology and innovation. 

We are a software-first, innovation-driven technology company. Our architectural platforms, MAGI-
C4ISR and MAGI-C4IX, integrate sensors, seekers, data, communications, and cybersecurity to deliver 
advanced command, control, and situational awareness solutions for defense and industrial systems. 

Entirely indigenous in design, our platform represents a next-generation architecture that bridges 
legacy and modern defense systems. In a defense ecosystem where platforms are sourced globally, our 
solution uniquely enables seamless integration. This capability has already been proven in global 
deployments, demonstrating its reliability and versatility. 

We are platform-centric and domain-focused, innovating at subsystem and component levels to 
deliver end-to-end solutions across the full spectrum of modern warfare technologies. 

India’s defense and security environment is undergoing a historic transformation toward technological 
self-reliance. We are proud to be part of this shift—developing advanced technologies in-house while 
selectively sourcing only essential components from global partners. 

The future of warfare will be asymmetric, shaped by autonomous systems, cybersecurity frameworks, 
and augmented intelligence—both at the edge and in strategic decision-making. We are already 
contributing to this future with multiple successful project deliveries and a strong pipeline of future-
ready innovations. 

FY25: A Year of Strategic Focus 

This year, we strengthened our platforms with strategic building blocks. Modern warfare is no longer 
defined solely by combat; only about 30% involves direct engagement, while the remaining 70% 
depends on supporting ecosystems—communications, mobility, manufacturing, logistics, supply 
chains, and maintenance. 

Our MAGI-C4ISR and MAGI-C4IX platforms orchestrate this entire ecosystem by integrating sensors, 
data, and communications to deliver superior combat readiness. 

We also expanded into dual-use capabilities that will generate long-term strategic value. Defense 
procurement requires rigorous proof-of-concept (POC) demonstrations, and we have consistently 
delivered POCs that are steadily converting into firm orders. 
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Building Sustainable Growth 

We believe in fostering both collaboration and entrepreneurship. Each of our teams operates as an 
independent business unit and profit center, while collaborating seamlessly on complex deliveries. This 
model drives excellence, accountability, and the creation of future leaders. 

Our commitment to continuous innovation is reinforced through significant investments in technology 
and development centers. 

 Our state-of-the-art Command and Control Centre in Bengaluru has been widely acclaimed by 
defense personnel for its advanced capabilities. 

 Building on this success, we are establishing additional centers specializing in control and 
automation, industrial control systems, cybersecurity, and data sciences. 

These investments will ensure we maintain long-term technological leadership. 

Our Commitment to Stakeholders We are building our company as a collective of 
entrepreneurs, unburdened by structural constraints and dedicated to excellence. Through equity-
based rewards, we recognize our leaders not merely as employees, but as partners in our shared 
journey. 

We aim to nurture an employee-partner ecosystem grounded in continuous learning, training, and 
thought leadership. 

Our success must always be validated by our clients and stakeholders. Profitability, for us, is 
inseparable from the quality of our technology and innovation. 

We aspire to stand as a shining example of India’s technological ambition, rooted in innovation and 
excellence. While our foundations are proudly Indian, our reach and impact will be global. 

Our commitment to building on our strengths and continuous learning the best practices is a hard 
journey. Our work in Defense and security is often confidential and despite this we aim to be 
transparent and continuously strive to achieve best in corporate governance standards and this is a 
work in progress. Our Board consists of individuals who are focused on guidance to achieve high 
standards of corporate governance and we thank them for their dedication and probity. 

 

With gratitude and determination, 

Lakshmi Chandra 
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Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)  
 

C2C Advanced Systems Limited 

For the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2025 
 

1. Industry Dynamics and India’s Defense Outlook 

The global defense sector is undergoing a fundamental transition. Traditional force-on-force conflicts 
are being replaced by asymmetric engagements where outcomes are determined by intelligence 
superiority, real-time decision-making, cyber dominance, and logistics resilience. Technology 
integration—across platforms, sensors, data, and communications—is now the decisive factor in 
national security. 

India stands at the epicenter of this shift. With defense allocations crossing ₹6 lakh crore (US$79 billion) 
in FY25, India is now the third-largest defense spender globally. Beyond budget growth, the policy 
environment has decisively turned toward self-reliance. Nearly 70% of defense capital procurement is 
reserved for domestic players under the Atmanirbhar Bharat program. 

Simultaneously, India is building a strong export posture. Defense exports crossed ₹20,000 crore 
(US$2.5 billion) in FY25 and are projected to reach ₹50,000 crore (US$6 billion) by 2030. This dual 
thrust—import substitution at home and export expansion abroad—creates an unprecedented runway 
for Indian defense innovators. 

Three structural shifts define the prognosis for India’s defense sector: 

1. Indigenization and Technology Sovereignty 
o Import bans under Positive Indigenization Lists are opening critical capability gaps for 

domestic firms to address. 
o Indigenous companies are being incentivized to design, develop, and own IP across the 

defense value chain. 
o For C2C, this aligns directly with our software-first, indigenous platform model, giving 

us both relevance and long-term defensibility. 
2. Ecosystem Modernization 

o Modern warfare is no longer limited to battlefield combat. Only 30% of warfighting is 
direct combat, while 70% is ecosystem-driven—communications, mobility, logistics, 
supply chains, maintenance, and cyber-readiness. 

o India’s planned theatre commands and push for jointness across services demand 
interoperable command-and-control platforms. 

o Our MAGI-C4ISR and MAGI-C4IX architectures are designed precisely for this 
environment, orchestrating sensors, communications, and logistics into a single 
integrated ecosystem. 
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3. Dual-Use and Export Orientation 
o Many defense technologies—cybersecurity, industrial control systems, AI-driven 

decision-making—are now equally critical for civilian and industrial applications. 
o India’s emphasis on exports requires globally interoperable solutions that can integrate 

with allied systems. 
o C2C’s dual-use capabilities extend our relevance beyond defense, providing growth 

resilience while positioning us to contribute to India’s export targets. 

Taken together, these shifts create a decade of sustained growth, global integration, and technology-
first opportunities for companies like C2C. 

 

2. Company Overview 

C2C Advanced Systems is built as a software-first, platform-centric company. Unlike hardware-heavy 
peers, our strength lies in creating architectures that integrate legacy and next-generation systems, 
making us both future-ready and backward-compatible. 

Our portfolio includes: 

 MAGI-C4ISR and MAGI-C4IX Platforms – Advanced architectures for integrated command, 
control, communications, intelligence, surveillance, and reconnaissance. 

 Dual-Use Technologies – Extending defense innovations into industrial automation, critical 
infrastructure, and cyber systems. 

 Specialized Technology Centres – State-of-the-art facilities for command & control, 
automation, cybersecurity, and data sciences, enabling continuous innovation and rapid 
prototyping. 

We operate through a business unit–based model, where each team is a profit centre accountable for 
delivery, while also collaborating across projects. This structure fosters entrepreneurship, 
accountability, and leadership development, creating future-ready leaders within the organization. 

 

3. FY25 Key Developments 

 Public Listing: Strengthened our financial foundation, broadened our shareholder base, and 
enhanced visibility in the market. 

 Proof-of-Concept (POC) Demonstrations: Multiple POCs successfully delivered, with several 
progressing into firm contracts, reinforcing customer trust in our solutions. 

 Dual-Use Expansion: Entry into industrial automation and control systems, diversifying our 
portfolio and reducing dependency on long defense cycles. 
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 Bengaluru Development Centre: Operationalized a state-of-the-art Command and Control 
facility, commended by defense personnel for its advanced capabilities. 

 Order Pipeline Growth: Maintained a healthy and growing order pipeline, supported by 
indigenization momentum and interest from global markets. 

 

4. Value Creation Framework 

Our value creation strategy is multi-dimensional, addressing both financial performance and strategic 
sustainability: 

 Financial Capital – Focused on high-margin growth, disciplined capital allocation, and 
strengthening shareholder wealth. 

 Intellectual Capital – IP-driven growth through proprietary platforms, patents, and scalable 
architectures. 

 Human Capital – Equity-linked rewards, entrepreneurial culture, and continuous skill 
development to retain top talent. 

 Social Capital – Active collaboration with MSMEs, startups, and academia to strengthen India’s 
defense innovation ecosystem. 

 Environmental Capital – Commitment to energy-efficient operations and sustainable defense 
practices, ensuring long-term environmental responsibility. 

 

5. Long-Term Strategic Themes 

 Indigenization with Global Integration – Delivering platforms deeply aligned with India’s 
defense priorities, while ensuring global interoperability for exports. 

 Ecosystem-Centric Solutions – Addressing the majority of warfare that lies in logistics, 
networks, and readiness, not just combat. 

 Investing in Future Technologies – Building capabilities in AI, autonomous systems, quantum-
secure communications, and space-based situational awareness. 

 Dual-Use Expansion – Scaling cybersecurity and industrial automation to diversify growth and 
strengthen resilience.  

 

6. Risks and Mitigation 

 Procurement Delays – Defense contracting cycles are long; mitigated by building a strong dual-
use portfolio. 

 Technology Obsolescence – Rapid change in AI and cyber technologies; mitigated by modular 
design and sustained R&D. 

 Geopolitical Risks – Supply chain disruptions; mitigated by selective sourcing and in-house 
development of critical technologies. 
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 Talent Retention – High demand for skilled professionals; mitigated through ownership culture 
and leadership development. 

 

7. Outlook 

 

With India’s defense budget rising, procurement policies favouring indigenization, and global export 
pathways opening, the outlook for C2C Advanced Systems is exceptionally strong. Our differentiated 
strategy positions us to: 

 Convert POCs into long-term contracts. 
 Scale dual-use offerings into industrial and civilian markets. 
 Support India’s defense export ambitions by building globally interoperable solutions. 
 Lead in the adoption of future technologies that will define the next generation of warfare. 

 

8. Details of Significant Changes in Key Financials and Ratios 

The following analysis presents key financial ratios and their year-over-year changes: 

Ratio FY24 FY25 Change Explanation 

Current Ratio 8.80 4.07 -4.73 Decrease due to increased current liabilities from 

business expansion and working capital requirements 

for larger projects 

Return on 

Equity (%) 

16.06 14.60 -1.46% Slight decrease due to substantial equity base 

expansion while maintaining strong profitability 

Net Profit 

Margin (%) 

29.91 25.05 -4.85% Controlled margin compression due to strategic 

investments in capability building and market 

expansion 

EBITDA 

Margin (%) 

44.64 35.98 -8.66% Planned reduction reflecting business scaling, 

increased operational capacity, and strategic hiring 
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Key Financial Performance Indicators (₹ in Lakhs): 

Particulars FY24 FY25 Growth FY24-25 

Revenue from Operations 4,106.0 11,511.0 180.3% 

EBITDA 1,833.0 4,142.0 126.0% 

PAT 1,228.0 2,884.0 134.9% 

Total Assets 8,584.0 26,245.0 205.8% 

Shareholders' Funds 7,646.0 19,759.0 158.5% 

 

9. Conclusion 

FY25 was a year of strategic foundation-building. Our platforms are proven, our order pipeline is 
expanding, and our investments in technology and human capital are future-focused. 

We remain committed to creating enduring shareholder value, advancing India’s defense self-reliance, 
and positioning C2C Advanced Systems as a global leader in software-first defense and industrial 
platforms. 

Our capabilities in architecting complex Defense, security, Industrial platforms is current generation 
and we are confident of becoming a major player in this segment. Our system integration capabilities 
is of global standards and is reflected in the projects we are working on globally. 

India Defense while vibrant thanks largely to Government initiatives to encourage private sector and 
innovations through various grants and partnerships, is still at a nascent stage. We anticipate these 
initiatives to deliver global class and scale opportunities in the future. 

We are highlighting some of our successful platforms and system deliveries to provide our shareholders 
examples of our achievements in 2024-25. We expect each year to add several such offerings so that 
we emerge as a one stop Technology enterprise- Globally relevant and admired. 

Our MAGI-C4ISR platform which integrates seekers, sensors, data and communication is a globally 
relevant platform and is fully indigenous. It is scalable, configurable, distributed and capable of every 
integrating every sensor- legacy or modern- Indian or globally sourced. We are continuously working to 
make it capable incredibly large volumes of data from Air, War, Land, autonomous, Space to deliver 
situational awareness to our Defense forces. Our aim is to deliver “intelligence at the edge of warfare”. 
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Company’s Key OƯerings 
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NOTICE OF 8TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

 

Notice is hereby given that the 08th Annual General Meeting of the Members of C2C Advanced 
Systems Limited will be held on Tuesday the 30th Day of September 2025 at 05:45 P.M through Video 
Conferencing/ Other Audio Visual Means (“VC”/“OAVM”) to transact the following matter(s): 
 
The deemed venue of the proceedings of the 8th AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company at 
Neil Rao Towers, 4th Floor, Cental Wing, 117 & 118, Road No 3, Vijayanagar, Epip Phase-1, Whitefield, 
Bangalore, Karnataka- 560066 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 

 
ITEM NO. 01- AdopƟon of Financial Statements 

To Receive, Consider and Adopt Audited Financial Statements of the company for the financial year 
ended on 31st March, 2025 and the reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon to pass 
the following resoluƟon: 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st 
March, 2025 including the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, the statement of Profit & Loss 
and Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended on that date along with the Notes appended 
thereto and Reports of the Auditors and Directors Report thereon, as circulated to the members, be and 
are hereby considered and adopted.” 

 

ITEM NO. 02- Re-Appointment of Mr. Murtaza Ali Soomar (DIN: 05194435) a Director, who reƟres by 
rotaƟon: 

To Re-appoint Mr. Murtaza Ali Soomar (DIN: 05194435) liable to reƟre by rotaƟon as a director and 
being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment as a director. In this regard, to consider and if 
thought fit, to pass the following resoluƟon as an Ordinary ResoluƟon: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 152 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Murtaza Ali Soomar (DIN: 05194435) liable to reƟre by rotaƟon at this 
meeƟng and being eligible, has offered himself for Re-appointment. Thus, be and is hereby appointed 
as a Director of the Company.” 
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SPECIAL BUSINESS 

 
ITEM NO. 03: Appointment of Mr.  Syam Sundar Venkata Appala (Din: 01960181) as a Non- ExecuƟve 
Non- Independent Director: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modificaƟon, the following resoluƟon as an 
Ordinary ResoluƟon: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of secƟon 152 and all other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the Companies (Appointment and QualificaƟons of Directors) Rules, 
2014 and SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015 [including any statutory modificaƟon(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) 
thereof for the Ɵme being in force], Mr. Syam Sundar Venkata Appala  (DIN: 01960181), who was 
appointed by the Board of Directors as an AddiƟonal Director (Non-ExecuƟve Non-Independent) of the 
Company, with effect from 25th March, 2025 under secƟon 161 of the Act and the ArƟcles of AssociaƟon 
of the Company and who holds office up to the conclusion of this Annual General MeeƟng of the 
Company, being so eligible, be appointed as a Non-ExecuƟve Non-Independent Director of the 
Company, liable to reƟre by rotaƟon.”  

 

ITEM NO. 04: Amendment in objects clause of the Memorandum of AssociaƟon of the Company: 

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modificaƟon(s) the following resoluƟon as a Special 
ResoluƟon: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SecƟons 4, 13, 15, and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modificaƟons, 
amendments, re-enactments or subsƟtuƟons thereof, for the Ɵme being in force), and subject to the 
provisions of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015, and such other 
approvals, consents, permissions and sancƟons as may be required from the Registrar of Companies or 
any other regulatory/statutory authority(ies), the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded 
to amend and adopt a new set of Memorandum of AssociaƟon of the Company by effecƟng the 
following alteraƟons in the exisƟng MOA of the Company by way of replacement of all the exisƟng 
clauses at 3(a) (1,2 and 3) in the manner set out below: 

1 To engage in the business as a technology-driven innovaƟon company with soŌware development and 
integraƟon with advanced hardware as the core, specializing in the architecture, design, engineering 
development, system integraƟon, manufacture, deployment, and support of advanced Command & 
Control systems, situaƟonal awareness plaƞorms and related technologies. 

2. To engage in building proprietary plaƞorms and innovaƟons and create Intellectual property that can 
be applied internally and licensed to third parƟes. 
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3. To engage in for building applicaƟons for NaƟonal Security- land, air, water and autonomous, 
Aerospace, Enterprise, Industrial, TransportaƟon Healthcare, Financial networks, Commerce, and allied 
sectors. 

4. To engage in architecƟng, designing, and engineering intelligent mulƟ-sensor fusion systems — 
integraƟng EO/IR cameras, AESA radars, FMCW LiDARs, RF spectrum analyzers, MEMS-based IMUs, and 
mulƟ-modal electronic hardware stacks, PLCs, SCADA, DCS — underpinned by edge-to-cloud IIoT 
frameworks (OPC UA, MQTT, Sparkplug B, TSN), real-Ɵme operaƟng systems (RTOS), and containerized 
microservices. To develop systems that process heterogeneous sensor data through scalable ML/DL 
pipelines (TensorFlow Lite, PyTorch Edge, ONNX RunƟme), AI-driven anomaly detecƟon, zero-trust 
cybersecurity architectures (NIST 800-53, IEC 62443), and embedded Linux/QNX plaƞorms — enabling 
autonomous decision loops, predicƟve threat modeling, dynamic resource allocaƟon, and enterprise-
wide digital transformaƟon with sub-second latency. 

5. To engage as architect, engineer and develop, integrate, and commercialize C5I (Command, Control, 
CommunicaƟons, Computers, Cyber, Intelligence) plaƞorms, including but not limited to combat 
management systems, communicaƟon systems, navigaƟon, surveillance, air/water/land/space 
domains, and drone/anƟ-drone/counter-drone control soluƟons, delivering real-Ɵme precision and 
intelligence for mission-criƟcal operaƟons. 

6. To engage and deliver dual-use technologies, re-engineering and retrofiƫng various naƟonal security 
systems while extending applicaƟons to industrial domains, including supply chain management, 
logisƟcs, enterprise ERP, decision support systems, and smart security soluƟons for smart ciƟes (e.g. 
Securiteze, Parkeze), thereby ensuring seamless performance in criƟcal environments of security. 

7. To engage and develop advanced Industrial IoT-driven systems for manufacturing, logisƟcs and supply 
chain and analyƟcs predicƟve analyƟcs for maintenance. Augmented reality systems for enhancing 
business operaƟons and training, 

8. To engage in building Data networks and frameworks, AnalyƟcs leading machine learning and 
Augmented Intelligence., natural language processing (NLP), and recommender systems—enabling real-
Ɵme insights, automaƟon, and opƟmized performance across all sectors. 

9. To engage.in Design and architecture of Smart security (ANPR, facial recogniƟon), Computer vision, 
Digital twin design and implementaƟon 

 10. To engage in design, manufacture, and supply embedded systems and hardware soluƟons, including 
weapon control consoles, mulƟ-funcƟon consoles, radar beam steering units, ruggedized COTS 
(commercial off the shelf) routers, network backbone ATRs, workstaƟons, and seaborne chart display 
systems—ensuring operaƟonal reliability and performance in demanding environments. 

11. To engage in digital transformaƟon iniƟaƟves, providing real-Ɵme, secure data soluƟons, end-to-end 
services for all sectors, integraƟng technologies such as cybersecurity, Augmented Intelligence, 
blockchain, and Industry pracƟces—enabling enhanced business execuƟon and profitability, 
collaboraƟon, and innovaƟon across domains. 



 

    29 
 

C2C Advanced Systems 

12. To engage in advanced engineering for product engineering, product development, process design, 
Control and automaƟon, roboƟcs and 3D prinƟng. 

13. To engage in trade of buying and selling high technology components that can be used in various 
system applicaƟons both for internal and distribuƟon to third parƟes. 

14. To engage as an investor/owner in technology start-ups in India and globally that enhances the 
technology capabiliƟes. Invest in financial instruments as may be appropriate as part of treasury and 
cash flow management. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for 
replacing the exisƟng clauses in the main object Clause of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT board of directors or the Company Secretary of the Company be and are 
hereby severally authorize to do all such acts, deeds, maƩers and things as may be deemed proper, 
necessary, or expedient, including filing the requisite forms with the appropriate authority or 
submission of documents with any other authority, for the purpose of giving effect to this ResoluƟon 
and for maƩers connected therewith or incidental thereto and to seƩle all quesƟons, difficulƟes or 
doubts that may arise in this regard at any stage without requiring the Board to secure any further 
consent or approval of the Members of the Company to the end and intent that the Members shall be 
deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resoluƟon.” 

ITEM NO. 05: Approval of Material Related Party TransacƟon(S) for FY. 2025-26: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resoluƟon as an Ordinary ResoluƟon: 

“RESOLVED THAT Pursuant to provisions of SecƟon 188 of the Companies Act 2013 (“Act”) and other 
applicable provisions if any read with Rule 15 of the Companies (MeeƟngs of Board and its Powers) 
Rules 2014 and pursuant to RegulaƟons 2(1)(c), 23(4) and other applicable RegulaƟons of the SecuriƟes 
and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015, as 
amended from Ɵme to Ɵme and based on the recommendaƟon of the Audit CommiƩee of Directors, 
consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors (hereinaŌer referred to as 
the 'Board', which term shall be deemed to include any CommiƩee consƟtuted / empowered / to be 
consƟtuted by the Board from Ɵme to Ɵme to exercise its powers conferred by this resoluƟon) to 
conƟnue with the exisƟng transacƟon(s) and/or carry out new transacƟon(s) (whether by way of an 
individual transacƟon or transacƟons taken together or series of transacƟons or otherwise) as detailed 
in the Explanatory Statement, C2C InnovaƟons Private Limited, PVR MulƟmedia Private Limited, 
RealƟme TechsoluƟons Private Limited, KTI Intelligent Systems Private Limited ( Companies where 
Promoter is interested, Related party for the Company) on such terms and condiƟons as may be agreed 
between the Company and C2C InnovaƟons Private Limited, PVR MulƟmedia Private Limited, RealƟme 
TechsoluƟons Private Limited, KTI Intelligent Systems Private Limited (Companies, for an aggregate value 
not exceeding Rs. 60 crores (Rupees Sixty Crores) for sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials, 
during the Financial Year 2025-26, notwithstanding the fact that the aggregate value of all these 
transacƟon(s), may exceed the prescribed thresholds as per provisions of the Act and SEBI LisƟng 
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RegulaƟons as applicable from Ɵme to Ɵme, provided, however, that the said 
contract(s/arrangement(s)/ transacƟon(s) so carried out shall be at arm's length basis and in ordinary 
course of business of the Company.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to approve transacƟons 
and the terms and condiƟons with the related party as defined under the Act and to delegate all or any 
of the powers conferred on it by or under this resoluƟon to any CommiƩee of Directors of the Company 
or to any one or more Directors of the Company or any other officer(s) or employee(s) of the Company, 
as it may deem fit, and to do all acts, deeds, maƩers and things and to take such steps as may be 
considered necessary, proper, expedient or incidental thereto as the Board may in its absolute discreƟon 
deem fit to give effect to the aforesaid resoluƟon including to seƩle any quesƟon, difficulty or doubt 
that may arise with regard to giving effect to the above resoluƟon and to sign, finalize, seƩle and execute 
necessary documents, papers etc on an ongoing basis, without being required to seek any further 
consent or approvals of the members or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed has 
given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resoluƟon for the purpose of giving effect 
to this ResoluƟon”. 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all acƟons taken by the Board, or any person so authorized by the Board, in 
connecƟon with any maƩer referred to or contemplated in any of the foregoing resoluƟons, be and are 
hereby approved, raƟfied and confirmed in all respect.” 

 

 
Date: September 6, 2025                                                        By order of the Board of Directors 
    For, C2C Advanced Systems Limited 
 

    SD/- 

    Manjeet Singh  
  Company Secretary 

 Membership Number: [A61378] 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTES: 
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1. InformaƟon regarding appointment/re-appointment of Director(s) and Explanatory Statement in 
respect of special businesses to be transacted pursuant to SecƟon 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and/or RegulaƟon 36(3) of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015 and Secretarial Standard II is annexed hereto and forms part of this NoƟce. 
 

2. Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circular No. 09/2023 dated 25 September 2023 
read with the circulars issued earlier on the subject (collecƟvely referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’) and 
SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2023/0164 dated 06 October 2023 read with the 
circulars issued earlier on the subject (collecƟvely referred to as “SEBI Circulars”), have permiƩed 
holding Annual General MeeƟng (“AGM”) through VC/ OAVM, without physical presence of the 
Members at a common venue.  
 
In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the provisions of the Act and the SEBI 
LisƟng RegulaƟons, the AGM is being conducted through VC/OAVM herein aŌer called as “e-AGM”. 
The deemed venue of the proceedings of the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company 
at Neil Rao Towers, 4th Floor, Cental Wing, 117 & 118, Road No 3, Vijayanagar, EPIP Phase-1, 
Whitefield, Bangalore- 560066. 
 

3. Though, pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member is entitled to attend and vote at the AGM 
is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf, since this AGM is being held 
pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM 
and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.  

 

4. The aƩendance of the Members aƩending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 
purpose of reckoning the quorum under SecƟon 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 

5. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the route map of the venue of the MeeƟng is not 
annexed hereto.  

 
6. Corporate shareholders/insƟtuƟonal shareholders intending to send their authorized 

representaƟve(s) to aƩend and vote at the AGM are requested to send from their registered e-mail 
address, scan copy of the relevant Board ResoluƟon/ Authority LeƩer, etc. authorizing their 
representaƟve(s) to vote, to the ScruƟnizer on their e-mail ID at Info.kkvk@gmail.com with a copy 
marked to compliance@c2c-as.com.  

 
7. The Company has appointed MUFG InƟme India Private Limited (Formerly Link InƟme India Private 

Limited, Registrars and Transfer Agents, to provide Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio-Visual 
Means (OAVM) facility for the Extra Ordinary General MeeƟng and the aƩendant enablers for 
conducƟng of the e-AGM.  
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8. In line with the aforesaid Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 

12, 2020, the Notice of AGM along with Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent through electronic 
mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. 
Member may note that Notice and Annual Report 2024-25 has been available on the website of the 
Company at www.c2c-as.com . The Notice shall also be available on the e-voting website of the 
agency engaged for providing e-voting facility, i.e. MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Link 
Intime India Private Limited viz., instavote.linkintime.co.in 

 
9. Those shareholders who have not yet registered their e-mail address are requested to get their e-

mail addresses submitted, by following the procedure given below:  
 
a) In case shares are held in physical mode, please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN 
card), and AADHAAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhaar Card) by email to compliance@c2c-
as.com. 

b) In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
compliance@c2c-as.com. 

c) Alternatively member may send an e-mail request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for obtaining User ID 
and Password by proving the details mentioned in Point (a) or (b) as the case may be.  

d) It is clarified that for permanent submission of e-mail address, the shareholders are however 
requested to register their email address, in respect of electronic holdings with the depository 
through the concerned depository participants and in respect of physical holdings with the 
Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly 
Link Intime India Private Limited, C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg Vikhroli 
(West), Mumbai 400 083 Maharashtra, India, E-Mail ID: instameet@in.mpms.mufg.com by 
following the due procedure.  

e) Those shareholders who have already registered their e-mail address are requested to keep 
their e-mail addresses validated with their depository participants / the Company’s Registrar 
and Share Transfer Agent, MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Link Intime India Private 
Limited) to enable servicing of notices / documents/ annual Reports electronically to their e-
mail address.  

 
10. It is clarified that for permanent submission of e-mail address, the shareholders are however 

requested to register their email address, in respect of electronic holdings with the depository 
through the concerned depository participants, by following the due procedure. 
 

11. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent 
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in 
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electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit PAN to their Depository Participants with whom 
they are maintaining their demat account. 
 

12. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of 
names will be entitled to vote. 

 

13. The Company has fixed its first cut-off date as 29th August,2025 for the purpose of dispatch of Notice 
of AGM. Any person who acquires shares after the first cut-off date but before the record date i.e 
23rd September, 2025 may obtain the ID-password from the Company’s RTA i.e MUFG Intime India 
Private Limited 
 

14. The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under 
SecƟon 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of contracts or arrangements in which the 
Directors are interested under SecƟon 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other documents 
referred to in the NoƟce will be available for inspecƟon in electronic mode.  
 

15. The Company has appointed M/s. K K V K & Associates (M. No. 570959), PracƟcing Chartered 
Accountant to act as the ScruƟnizer for conducƟng the remote e-voƟng process as well as the e-
voƟng system on        the date of the AGM, in a fair and transparent manner. 
 

16. The members may cast their votes through electronic voƟng system (remote e- voƟng). The remote 
e-voƟng period will commence at 9.00 A.M. on Saturday, September 27, 2025 and will end on 5:00 
P.M. on Monday, September 29, 2025. In addiƟon, the facility for e-voƟng shall also be made 
available during the AGM.  
 

17. Members parƟcipaƟng in the AGM through Video Conference/ Other Audio Visual Means who have 
not cast their vote by remote e-voƟng shall be eligible to cast their vote through e-voƟng during the 
AGM. Members who have voted through remote e-voƟng shall be eligible to parƟcipate in the AGM; 
however, they shall not be eligible to vote at the meeƟng. 

 

18. PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING THE AGM: 
 

a) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of 
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 
44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended), 
and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 
2020, May 5, 2020 and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, the Company is providing facility of 
remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For 
this purpose, the Company has appointed MUFG Intime India Private Limited, as the 
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Authorised e-voting agency for facilitating voting through electronic means. The instructions 
to cast votes through remote e-voting and through e-voting system during the AGM are 
annexed separately and form part of this Notice. 

b) There being no physical shareholders in the Company, the Register of members and share 
transfer books of the Company will not be closed. Members whose names are recorded in 
the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the 
Depositories as on the Cut-off date i.e. 18th July, 2025 shall be entitled to avail the facility 
of remote e-voting as well as e-voting system on the date of the AGM. Any recipient of the 
Notice, who has no voting rights as on the Cut-off date, shall treat this Notice as intimation 
only. 

c) A person who has acquired the shares and has become a member of the Company after the 
dispatch of the Notice of the AGM and prior to the Cut-off date i.e. 29th August, 2025, shall be 
entitled to exercise his/her vote either electronically i.e. remote   e-voting or e-voting system 
on the date of the AGM by following the procedure mentioned in this part. 

d) The remote e-voting will commence on 9.00 A.M. on Saturday, September 27, 2025 and will 
end on 5:00 P.M. on Monday, September 29, 2025. During this period, the members of the 
Company holding shares as on the Cut-off date i.e. 23rd September, 2025, may cast their vote 
electronically. The members will not be able to cast their vote electronically beyond the date 
and time mentioned above and the remote e-voting module shall be disabled for voting by 
MUFG Intime India Private Limited thereafter. 

e) Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it 
subsequently or cast the vote again. 

f) The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity 
share capital of the Company as on the Cut-off date i.e. 23rd September, 2025. 
 

19. INSTRUCTIONS FOR CASTING VOTES BY REMOTE E-VOTING 
 

As per the SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, individual shareholders holding in terms of SEBI 
circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023, Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants.  
 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id correctly in their demat accounts 
to access e-Voting facility.  
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LOGIN METHOD FOR INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN DEMAT MODE IS GIVEN 
BELOW:  
 

Individual Shareholders 
registered with NSDL IDeAS 
facility 

a) Visit URL: hƩps://eservices.nsdl.com and click on “Beneficial 
Owner” icon under “Login”.  
b) Enter User ID and Password. Click on “Login” 
c) AŌer successful authenƟcaƟon, you will be able to see e-VoƟng 
services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-VoƟng” 
under e-VoƟng services.  
d) Click on “MUFG InƟme” or “evoƟng link displayed alongside 
Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote website 
for casƟng the vote during the remote e-voƟng period.  

Shareholders who have not 
registered for NSDL IDeAS 
facility:  

a) To register, visit URL: hƩps://eservices.nsdl.com and select  
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click on 
hƩps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  
b) Proceed with updaƟng the required fields.  
c) Post successful registraƟon, user will be provided with 
Login ID and password.  
d) AŌer successful login, you will be able to see e-VoƟng 
services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-VoƟng” 
under e-VoƟng services.  
e) Click on “MUFG InƟme” or “evoƟng link displayed alongside 
Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote website 
for casƟng the vote during the remote e-voƟng period.  

Individual Shareholders 
directly visiƟng the e-voƟng 
website of NSDL 

a) Visit URL: hƩps://www.evoƟng.nsdl.com   
b) Click on the “Login” tab available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ secƟon.  
c) Enter User ID (i.e., your sixteen-digit demat account 
number held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a VerificaƟon Code as 
shown on the screen.  
a) Post successful authenƟcaƟon, you will be re-directed to 
NSDL depository website wherein you will be able to see e-VoƟng 
services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-VoƟng” 
under e-VoƟng services.  
b) Click on “MUFG InƟme / Link InƟme” or “evoƟng link 
displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected 
to InstaVote website for casƟng the vote during the remote e-
voƟng period.  
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INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN DEMAT MODE WITH CDSL 
Shareholders who have 
registered/ opted for CDSL 
Easi/ Easiest facility: 
 

a) Visit URL: 
hƩps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Home/Login or 
www.cdslindia.com.  
b) Click on New System Myeasi Tab 
c) Login with exisƟng my easi username and password  
d) AŌer successful login, user will be able to see e-voƟng 
opƟon. The evoƟng opƟon will have links of e-voƟng service 
providers i.e., MUFG InƟme / Link InƟme, for voƟng during the 
remote e-voƟng period.  
e) Click on “MUFG InƟme / Link InƟme” or “evoƟng link 
displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected 
to InstaVote website for casƟng the vote during the remote e-
voƟng period. 
 

Shareholders who have not 
registered for CDSL Easi/ 
Easiest facility: 
 

a) To register, visit URL: 
hƩps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/RegistraƟon/EasiRegist
raƟon / 
hƩps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/RegistraƟon/EasiestRe
gistraƟon 
b) Proceed with updaƟng the required fields.  
c) Post registraƟon, user will be provided username and 
password.  
d) AŌer successful login, user able to see e-voƟng menu.  
e) Click on “MUFG InƟme / Link InƟme” or “evoƟng link 
displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected 
to InstaVote website for casƟng the vote during the remote e-
voƟng period.  
 

Individual Shareholders 
directly visiting the e-voting 
website of CDSL 

a) Visit URL: hƩps://www.cdslindia.com 
b) Go to e-voƟng tab.  
c) Enter Demat Account Number (BO ID) and PAN No. and 
click on “Submit”. 
d) System will authenƟcate the user by sending OTP on 
registered Mobile and Email as recorded in Demat Account  
e) AŌer successful authenƟcaƟon, click on “MUFG InƟme” or 
“evoƟng link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will 
be redirected to InstaVote website for casƟng the vote during the 
remote e-voƟng period.  
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INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN DEMAT MODE WITH DEPOSITORY 
PARTICIPANT 

 
Individual shareholders can also login using the login credenƟals of your demat account through your 
depository parƟcipant registered with NSDL / CDSL for e-voƟng facility.  

a) Login to DP website 
b) AŌer Successful login, user shall navigate through “e-voƟng” opƟon.   
c) Click on e-voƟng opƟon, user will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository website aŌer 

successful authenƟcaƟon, wherein user can see e-voƟng feature. 
d) AŌer successful authenƟcaƟon, click on “MUFG InƟme / Link InƟme” or “evoƟng link displayed 

alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casƟng the vote 
during the remote e-voƟng period.  

 

LOGIN METHOD FOR SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN PHYSICAL MODE /NON-
INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN DEMAT MODE 
 

Shareholders holding shares in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securiƟes in 
demat mode as on the cut-off date for e-voƟng may register for InstaVote as under: 
 
Shareholders who have not 
registered for INSTAVOTE 
facility: 
 

a) Visit URL: hƩps://instavote.linkinƟme.co.in  
b) Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register 
with your following details:  
A. User ID:  
NSDL demat account – User ID is 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 
Digit Client ID.  
CDSL demat account – User ID is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 
Shareholders holding shares in physical form – User ID is Event No 
+ Folio Number registered with the Company.  
B. PAN:  
Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN)  
(Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Depository 
ParƟcipant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided 
to you, if applicable.  
C. DOB/DOI:  
Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of IncorporaƟon (DOI) (As 
recorded with your DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format)  
D. Bank Account Number:  
Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with 
your DP/Company. 
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*Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide ‘D’ above 
**Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not 
recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall provide their Folio number in ‘D’ above 
 Set the password of your choice  
(The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one 
special Character (!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one 
alphabet and at least one capital leƩer).  
 Enter Image VerificaƟon (CAPTCHA) Code 
 Click “Submit” (You have now registered on InstaVote).  
 

Shareholders who have 
registered for INSTAVOTE 
facility: 
 

a) Visit URL: hƩps://instavote.linkinƟme.co.in 
b) Click on “Login” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab.  
A. User ID: Enter your User ID 
B. Password: Enter your Password 
C. Enter Image VerificaƟon (CAPTCHA) Code 
D. Click “Submit” 
 
c) Cast your vote electronically: 
A. AŌer successful login, you will be able to see the 
“NoƟficaƟon for e-voƟng”.  
B. Select ‘View’ icon.  
C. E-voƟng page will appear.  
D. Refer the ResoluƟon descripƟon and cast your vote by 
selecƟng your desired opƟon ‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view 
the enƟre ResoluƟon details, click on the ‘View ResoluƟon’ file link).  
E. AŌer selecƟng the desired opƟon i.e. Favour / Against, click 
on ‘Submit’.  
A confirmaƟon box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your 
vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and 
accordingly modify your vote.  

 
GUIDELINES FOR INSTITUTIONAL SHAREHOLDERS (“CUSTODIAN / CORPORATE BODY/ MUTUAL 
FUND”) 

Custodian / Corporate Body/ 
Mutual Fund RegistraƟon 

 

a) Visit URL: hƩps://instavote.linkinƟme.co.in   
b) Click on “Sign Up” under “Custodian / Corporate Body/ 
Mutual Fund”  
c) Fill up your enƟty details and submit the form.  
d) A declaraƟon form and organizaƟon ID is generated and sent 
to the Primary contact person email ID (which is filled at the Ɵme of 
sign up). The said form is to be signed by the Authorised Signatory, 
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Director, Company Secretary of the enƟty & stamped and sent to 
insta.vote@linkinƟme.co.in.   
e) ThereaŌer, Login credenƟals (User ID; OrganisaƟon ID; 
Password) is sent to Primary contact person’s email ID. (You have 
now registered on InstaVote) 

Investor Mapping  

 

a) Visit URL: hƩps://instavote.linkinƟme.co.in and login with 
InstaVote Login credenƟals.  
b) Click on “Investor Mapping” tab under the Menu SecƟon  
c) Map the Investor with the following details:  
A. ‘Investor ID’ –  

i.NSDL demat account – User ID is 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 
Digit Client ID i.e., IN00000012345678 

ii.CDSL demat account – User ID is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 
B. ‘Investor’s Name - Enter Investor’s Name as updated with 
DP.  
C. ‘Investor PAN’ - Enter your 10-digit PAN.  
D. ‘Power of AƩorney’ - AƩach Board resoluƟon or Power of 
AƩorney.  

 
*File Name for the Board resoluƟon/ Power of AƩorney shall be – 
DP ID and Client ID or 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. Further, Custodians 
and Mutual Funds shall also upload specimen signatures.  
E. Click on Submit buƩon. (The investor is now mapped with 
the Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund EnƟty). The same 
can be viewed under the “Report SecƟon”.   

VoƟng through remote e-
voƟng 

METHOD 1 - VOTES ENTRY  
a) Visit URL: hƩps://instavote.linkinƟme.co.in and login with 
InstaVote Login credenƟals.  
b) Click on “Votes Entry” tab under the Menu secƟon.  
c) Enter the “Event No.” for which you want to cast vote.  
Event No. can be viewed on the home page of InstaVote under 
“On-going Events”.   
d) Enter “16-digit Demat Account No.” for which you want to 
cast vote.  
e) Refer the ResoluƟon descripƟon and cast your vote by 
selecƟng your desired opƟon ‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to 
view the enƟre ResoluƟon details, click on the ‘View ResoluƟon’ 
file link).  
f) AŌer selecƟng the desired opƟon i.e. Favour / Against, click 
on ‘Submit’.  
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A confirmaƟon box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your 
vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and 
accordingly modify your vote.  
 
METHOD 2 - VOTES UPLOAD 
a) Visit URL: hƩps://instavote.linkinƟme.co.in and login with 
InstaVote Login credenƟals. 
b) AŌer successful login, you will be able to see the 
“NoƟficaƟon for e-voƟng”.    
c) Select “View” icon for “Company’s Name / Event number”.  
d) E-voƟng page will appear.  
e) Download sample vote file from “Download Sample Vote 
File” tab.  
f) Cast your vote by selecƟng your desired opƟon 'Favour / 
Against' in the sample vote file and upload the same under 
“Upload Vote File” opƟon.  
g) Click on ‘Submit’. ‘Data uploaded successfully’ message will 
be displayed.  
(Once you cast your vote on the resoluƟon, you will not be 
allowed to modify or change it subsequently). 

 
HELPDESK: 
Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode: 
 

Shareholders holding securiƟes in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securiƟes in 
demat mode facing any technical issue in login may contact INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a request 
at enoƟces@in.mpms.mufg.com or contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000. 
 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 
 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective helpdesk for any 
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e., NSDL and CDSL. 
 

Login type  Helpdesk details  
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL  

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 
- 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL  

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 
or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33  
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Forgot Password 
Shareholders holding 
securiƟes in physical mode / 
Non-Individual Shareholders 
holding securiƟes in demat 
mode: 

Shareholders holding securiƟes in physical mode / Non-Individual 
Shareholders holding securiƟes in demat mode have forgoƩen the 
USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both then the shareholder can 
use the “Forgot Password” opƟon available on: 
hƩps://instavote.linkinƟme.co.in 

 Click on “Login” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab. 
 Click “forgot password?”  
 Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image 

VerificaƟon code (CAPTCHA).  
 Click on “SUBMIT”. 

 
In case shareholders have a valid email address, Password will be 
sent to his / her registered e-mail address. Shareholders can set the 
password of his/her choice by providing informaƟon about the 
parƟculars of the Security QuesƟon and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, 
Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. The password should 
contain a minimum of 8 characters, at least one special character 
(!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least 
one capital leƩer.  
 
User ID:  
NSDL demat account – User ID is 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 
Digit Client ID.  
CDSL demat account – User ID is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 
Shareholders holding shares in physical form – User ID is Event No 
+ Folio Number registered with the Company.  

In case Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund has forgoƩen the 
USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both then the shareholder can 
use the “Forgot Password” opƟon available on: 
hƩps://instavote.linkinƟme.co.in 

 Click on ‘Login’ under “Custodian / Corporate Body/ 
Mutual Fund” tab  

 Click “forgot password?”  
 Enter User ID, OrganizaƟon ID and Enter Image 

VerificaƟon code (CAPTCHA).  
 Click on “SUBMIT”. 

 



 

    42 
 

C2C Advanced Systems 

In case shareholders have a valid email address, Password will be 
sent to his / her registered e-mail address. Shareholders can set the 
password of his/her choice by providing informaƟon about the 
parƟculars of the Security QuesƟon and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI etc. 
The password should contain a minimum of 8 characters, at least 
one special character (!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one 
alphabet and at least one capital leƩer. 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securiƟes in demat 
mode with NSDL/ CDSL has 
forgoƩen the password: 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode have 
forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both, then the 
Shareholders are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password option available at above mentioned depository/ 
depository participants website. 
 
 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with 

any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential.  

 For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the 
details can be used only for voting on the resolutions contained 
in this Notice. 

 During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any 
number of time till they have voted on the resolution(s) for a 
particular “Event”. 

 

20. PROCESS AND MANNER FOR ATTENDING THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING THROUGH INSTAMEET: 
In terms of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) General Circular No. 09/2024 dated 19.09.2024, the 
Companies can conduct their AGMs/ EGMs on or before 30 September 2025 by means of Video 
Conference (VC) or other audio-visual means (OAVM).  

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id correctly in their demat accounts 
to access InstaMeet facility.  

Login method for shareholders to aƩend the General MeeƟng through InstaMeet: 

Visit URL: hƩps://instameet.in.mpms.mufg.com & click on “Login”.  

Select the “Company Name” and register with your following details:  

Select Check Box - Demat Account No. / Folio No. / PAN 

 Shareholders holding shares in NSDL/ CDSL demat account shall select check box - Demat 
Account No. and enter the 16-digit demat account number. 

 Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall select check box – Folio No. and enter the 
Folio Number registered with the company.  



 

    43 
 

C2C Advanced Systems 

 Shareholders shall select check box – PAN and enter 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN). 
Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Depository ParƟcipant (DP)/ Company 
shall use the sequence number provided by MUFG InƟme, if applicable.  

 Mobile No: Mobile No. as updated with DP is displayed automaƟcally. Shareholders who have 
not updated their Mobile No with the DP shall enter the mobile no. 

 Email ID: Email Id as updated with DP is displayed automaƟcally. Shareholders who have not 
updated their Mobile No with the DP shall enter the mobile no. 

Click “Go to MeeƟng”  

You are now registered for InstaMeet, and your aƩendance is marked for the meeƟng. 

InstrucƟons for shareholders to Speak during the General MeeƟng through InstaMeet: 

 Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeƟng must register their request with the 
company.  

 Shareholders will get confirmaƟon on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made 
by the company.  

 Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark aƩendance for the meeƟng. 
Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversaƟon with panelist by switching 
on video mode and audio of your device. 

 Other shareholder who has not registered as “Speaker Shareholder” may sƟll ask quesƟons to 
the panelist via acƟve chat-board during the meeƟng. 

*Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeƟng/ management will 
announce the name and serial number for speaking.  

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO VOTE DURING THE GENERAL MEETING THROUGH 
INSTAMEET: 

Once the electronic voƟng is acƟvated during the meeƟng, shareholders who have not exercised their 
vote through the remote e-voƟng can cast the vote as under: 

 On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-VoƟng “Cast your vote” 

Enter your 16-digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ 
registered email Id) received during registraƟon for InstaMeet  

Click on 'Submit'.  

AŌer successful login, you will see “ResoluƟon DescripƟon” and against the same the opƟon “Favour/ 
Against” for voƟng.  

Cast your vote by selecƟng appropriate opƟon i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of 
shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/Against'. 

AŌer selecƟng the appropriate opƟon i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click 
on “Save”. A confirmaƟon box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, 
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else to change your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote. Once you confirm your vote 
on the resoluƟon, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote subsequently. 

Note:  

 Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the General MeeƟng through InstaMeet facility 
and have not casted their vote on the ResoluƟons through remote e-VoƟng and are otherwise 
not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-VoƟng facility during the meeƟng.  

 Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote e-VoƟng prior to the General MeeƟng 
will be eligible to aƩend/ parƟcipate in the General MeeƟng through InstaMeet. However, they 
will not be eligible to vote again during the meeƟng.  

 Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the MeeƟng through Tablets/ Laptops 
connected through broadband for beƩer experience. 

 Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS 
download stream) to avoid any disturbance during the meeƟng. 

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecƟng from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops 
connecƟng via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuaƟon in their network.  It 
is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-FI or LAN connecƟon to miƟgate any kind of aforesaid 
glitches. 

Helpdesk: 

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact INSTAMEET helpdesk by sending a request 
at instameet@in.mpms.mufg.com or contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000 / 4918 6175. 

21. The ScruƟnizer shall, aŌer the conclusion of voƟng at the AGM, unblock the votes cast through 
remote e-VoƟng and count the same, and count the votes cast during the AGM, and shall make, not 
later than 48 hours from the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated ScruƟnizer’s Report of the total 
votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in wriƟng, who 
shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voƟng forthwith. The ScruƟnizer’s decision 
on the validity of the votes shall be final. 
 

22. The results declared along with the report of ScruƟnizer shall be placed on the website of the 
Company immediately aŌer the declaraƟon of results by the Chairman or any other Key Managerial 
Personnel. The results shall also be forwarded to the Stock Exchange within 48 hours of the 
conclusion of Annual General MeeƟng. 
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CONTACT DETAILS: 

Company C2C ADVANCED SYSTEMS LIMITED  
Reg. Office: Neil Rao Towers, 4th Floor, Cental Wing, 117 & 118, 
Road No 3, Vijayanagar, EPIP Phase-1, Whitefield, Bangalore- 
560066 
Corporate Office: C-4, Anand Niketan, New Delhi,  110021. 
Contact Person: CS  Manjeet Singh  
Mobile No: +91 9350009060 
Email Id: compliance@c2cas.com  
Website: www.c2c-as.com 

Registrar and Transfer Agent/ 
E-VoƟng Agency & VC / 
OAVM 

MUFG InƟme India Private Limited 
Address C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park, L.B. S. Marg, Vikhroli (West) 
Mumbai 400 083 Maharashtra, India. 
Tel. Number: +91 22 4918 6200  
Email Id: delhi@linkinƟme.co.in 
Investors Grievance Id: rnt.helpdesk@linkinƟme.co.in 
Website: hƩps://in.mpms.mufg.com 

ScruƟnizer  M/s K K V K & Associates 
Chartered Accountant 
Email: Info.kkvk@gmail.com 
Contact No. +91 8053194534 

Secretarial Auditor M/s S Khandelwal & Co 
Company Secretaries 
Email Id: Sanjay@csskc.in 
Contact No.: +91 9899516433 
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 

Explanatory Statement Pursuant to SecƟon 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and / or RegulaƟon 36(3) 
of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 

IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO. 03: Appointment of Mr. Syam Sundar Venkata Appala (DIN: 01960181) as an 
Non- ExecuƟve and Non-Independent Director: Ordinary ResoluƟon 

Proposal: 

The Board of Directors of the Company at its MeeƟng held on 19th March, 2025, pursuant to the 
recommendaƟon NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee (“NRC”) has approved the appointment of 
Mr. Syam Sundar Venkata Appala (DIN: 01960181) as an AddiƟonal Director (Non-ExecuƟve and Non-
Independent) of the Company with effect from 25th March, 2025 to hold office up to the conclusion of 
this Annual General MeeƟng of the Company pursuant to secƟon 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”), and thereaŌer, subject to the approval of the Members of the Company, as a Non-ExecuƟve and 
Non-Independent Director of the Company, liable to reƟre by rotaƟon. 

Profile: 

Mr. Syam Sundar Venkata Appala is an accomplished entrepreneur with over two decades of experience 
in AI, SaaS, IT infrastructure, cybersecurity, health-tech, and energy sectors. His track record of 
conceptualizing and delivering soluƟons with mulƟ-billion-dollar potenƟal is unparalleled. As the Senior 
Director of the Emerging Technologies & IncubaƟon group at Cisco Systems, Inc., in San Jose, CA, He has 
led iniƟaƟves that generated over $100 billion in revenues in the past decade. He is a pioneer in Internet 
standards for Enterprise SaaS, Enterprise Networking, IoT, and cybersecurity, holding over 25 patents. 

RemuneraƟon:  

Mr. Syam Appala would be enƟtled to siƫng fees for aƩending the MeeƟngs of the Board of Directors 
and CommiƩee(s) thereof. 

Other informaƟon: 

Mr. Syam Appala does not hold any Ordinary (Equity) Shares in the Company. The NominaƟon and 
RemuneraƟon CommiƩee (NRC) has idenƟfied certain skills and capabiliƟes required by the Directors 
of the Company. The skill sets possessed by Mr. Syam Appala are aligned to those idenƟfied by NRC. Mr. 
Syam Sundar Venkata Appala is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of secƟon 
164 of the Act and has given his consent to act as a Director. He is not debarred from holding the office 
of Director pursuant to any Order issued by the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or any 
other authority. The Board is of the view that Mr. Syam Appala knowledge and experience will be of 
immense benefit and value to the Company. 

Except Mr. Syam Sundar Venkata Appala, none of the other Directors or the Key Managerial Persons, or 
their relaƟves, are or may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the resoluƟon. 
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IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO. 04: Amendment in objects clause of the Memorandum of AssociaƟon of the 
Company: Special resoluƟon 

The Board of Directors of the Company proposes to amend the Objects Clause of the Memorandum of 
AssociaƟon (“MOA”) by way of subsƟtuƟon of certain clauses, in line with the evolving business model, 
diversificaƟon strategy, and future expansion plans of the Company. This explanatory statement is being 
provided to furnish all material facts pertaining to the proposed resoluƟon and to enable the members 
to make an informed decision. 

In terms of the provisions of SecƟons 4, 13, and 15 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable 
rules framed thereunder, any amendment to the MOA requires the approval of the shareholders by way 
of a Special ResoluƟon. Further, as the Company is listed on NSE Emerge, it is also required to comply 
with applicable provisions of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015. 

These amendments are intended to enable the Company to explore new business opportuniƟes, align 
its consƟtuƟonal documents with current and future business strategies, and undertake related 
ancillary acƟviƟes, including domesƟc and internaƟonal projects. 

IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO. 05: Approval of Related Party TransacƟon(S) FY. 2025-26: Ordinary 
ResoluƟon 

Pursuant to SecƟon 188 of the Companies Act 2013 and the applicable Rules framed thereunder state 
that any related party transacƟon in relaƟon to sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials or 
services, unsecured loans, other loans and Advances , directly or through appointment of agent 
amounƟng to or exceeding l0% or more of the turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial 
statement for the preceding financial year shall not be entered into by the company except with the 
prior approval of the Company by a resoluƟon. 

Furthermore, RegulaƟon 15(2) of SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and 
Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 states the non- applicability of RegulaƟon 23 of SecuriƟes 
and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) on companies listed on 
SME exchange for the related party transacƟons. 

During the Financial Year 2025-26, the Company, proposes to enter into certain related party  

transacƟon(s) with C2C InnovaƟons Private Limited, PVR MulƟmedia Private Limited, RealƟme 
TechsoluƟons Private Limited, KTI Intelligent Systems Private Limited as menƟoned below, on mutually 
agreed terms and condiƟons, and the aggregate of such transacƟon(s) are expected to cross the 
applicable materiality thresholds. 

Accordingly, transacƟon(s) entered with C2C InnovaƟons Private Limited, PVR MulƟmedia Private 
Limited, RealƟme TechsoluƟons Private Limited, KTI Intelligent Systems Private Limited comes within 
the meaning of Related Party TransacƟon(s) in terms of provisions of the Act applicable rules framed 
thereunder. All the said transacƟons shall be in the ordinary course of business of the Company and on 
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an arm’s length basis. The Board of Directors, at its meeƟng held on September 06, 2025, upon 
recommendaƟon of the Audit CommiƩee of the Company, at its meeƟng held on same day, had, subject 
to approval of members of the Company, approved an aggregate limit not exceeding Rs. 60 Crores, 
collecƟvely for transacƟons involving sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials or services, 
unsecured loans, other loans and Advances for the Financial Year 2025-26, with above menƟoned 
related parƟes within the definiƟon of SecƟon 2(76) of the Act.  

Except Mr. Murtaza Ali Soomar & Ms. Lakshmi Chandra along with and/or his relaƟves are concerned or 
interested in the resoluƟons. None of the other Directors and/ or Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and/or their respecƟve relaƟves are concerned or interested either directly or indirectly, 
except to the extent of their shareholding in the Company, if any, in the ResoluƟon menƟoned at Item 
No. 5 of the NoƟce.  

The Board recommends the relevant Ordinary resoluƟon set forth at Item no. 05 in the NoƟce for the 
approval of the Members for the said Related Party TransacƟon(s) proposed to be entered by our 
Company.  

Pursuant to Rule 15 of Companies (MeeƟngs of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 as amended Ɵll date 
parƟculars of the transacƟons with C2C InnovaƟons Private Limited, PVR MulƟmedia Private Limited, 
RealƟme TechsoluƟons Private Limited, KTI Intelligent Systems Private Limited are as follows: 

 Item No. 5 
Sl.  ParƟculars Remarks 
1 Name of Related ParƟes C2C InnovaƟons Private Limited, PVR 

MulƟmedia Private Limited, RealƟme 
TechsoluƟons Private Limited, KTI Intelligent 
Systems Private Limited 

2 Name of the Director or KMP who 
is related 

Mr. Murtaza Ali Soomar & Ms. Lakshmi Chandra 

3 Nature of RelaƟonship Ms. Lakshmi Chandra are promoter & director 
of C2C InnovaƟons Private Limited, PVR 
MulƟmedia Private Limited, Mr. Murtaza Ali 
Soomar is shareholder of C2C InnovaƟons 
Private Limited, PVR MulƟmedia Private 
Limited. KTI is subsidiary of C2C InnovaƟons 
Private Limited and RealƟme TechsoluƟons 
Private Limited is subsidiary of PVR MulƟmedia 
Private Limit 

4 Type of transacƟon sale, purchase or supply of any goods or 
materials or services, unsecured loans, other 
loans and Advances 

5 Monetary Value The esƟmated aggregate value of transacƟon 
for the maƩers proposed in the resoluƟon shall 
not exceed Rs. 60 Crores for FY 2025-26. 

6 JusƟficaƟon as to why the RPTs are 
in the interest of the Company 

The Related Party TransacƟons (RPTs) 
undertaken by the Company are essenƟal for 
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achieving its strategic, operaƟonal, and 
financial objecƟves. 

7 Nature materials terms and 
parƟculars of the 
Contracts/arrangements/ 

sale, purchase or supply of any goods or 
materials or services, unsecured loans, other 
loans and Advances as these are dependent on 
the requirement for its product and other 
business acƟviƟes. However such transacƟons 
would be in ordinary course of the Company’s 
business and at the arm’s length basis 

8 Any advance paid or received for 
the contracts/arrangements 

As per industry norms customs and usages.  

9 Tenure of contracts/arrangement April 1, 2025 to March 31, 2026 and onwards  
10 Any other informaƟon relevant or  

important for the members to take 
a decision on the proposed 
resoluƟon 

NA 

 

 
Date: September 6, 2025                                                        By order of the Board of Directors 
   For, C2C Advanced Systems Limited 
   SD/- 
 
    Manjeet Singh  
  Company Secretary 

 Membership Number: [A61378] 
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Disclosure under RegulaƟon 36 (3) of SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015 and Secretarial Standards-2 issued by ICSI:  
 

Item No. 2: 

Name Mr. Murtaza Ali Soomar 

Date of Birth 19/10/1979 

QualificaƟon BA from University of Delhi 

Experience - ExperƟse in specific  

funcƟonal areas - Job profile and  

suitability 

He brings about 2 decades of diverse 
entrepreneurial experience to my current 
strategic posiƟon within the company. 
Traversing through the disƟnct skill sets of 
Founder, COO, CEO and CFO, I derive my 
grounding in an innovaƟve, problem-solving 
mindset striving for excellence and quality. I 
was at the helm of scaling, diversifying and 
providing strategic direcƟon to the endeavor, 
that rose up from a small family-run business 
to a specialized, medium-scale enterprise, 
constantly expanding and renewing its 
capacity and offer to discerning and 
specialized clientele. 

No. of Shares held as on March 31, 2025 97600 shares 

Terms & CondiƟons Liable to reƟre by rotaƟon  

RemuneraƟon Last Drawn Rs. 51.13 Lakhs 

RemuneraƟon sought to be paid Rs. 51.13 Lakhs (approx) 

Date of Original Appointment September 30, 2018 

Date of Appointment in current terms February 12, 2024 

Directorships held in other private  and 
public  companies including deemed public 
companies and excluding our Company, 
SecƟon 8 Companies, Struck off Companies 
and LLPs. 

Mytravel Value Private Limited 
Zasfa Packaging Private Limited 

Memberships / Chairmanships of  

commiƩees of public companies* 

NA 

Inter-se RelaƟonship with other  NA 
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Directors.  

InformaƟon as required pursuant to  

NSE Circular No. NSE/CML/2018/24  

dated June 20, 2018 

Mr. Murtaza Ali Soomar is not debarred from 
holding the office of director pursuant to any 
SEBI order or any other authority 

Listed EnƟƟes from which Director has  

resigned as Director in past 3 years. 

NIL 

 

Item No. 3 

Name Mr. Syam Sundar Venkata Appala 

Date of Birth 27/12/1974 

QualificaƟon Syam's educaƟonal background includes  
Product and engineering management from 
Stanford University and UC Berkeley Haas 
School of Business, and an MS in Electrical and 
Computer Engineering from Tennessee 
Technological University. 

Experience - ExperƟse in specific  

funcƟonal areas - Job profile and  

suitability 

 Mr. Syam Sundar Venkata Appala is an 
accomplished entrepreneur with over two 
decades of experience in AI, SaaS, IT 
infrastructure, cybersecurity, health-tech, and 
energy sectors. His track record of 
conceptualizing and delivering soluƟons with 
mulƟ-billion-dollar potenƟal is unparalleled. 
As the Senior Director of the Emerging 
Technologies & IncubaƟon group at Cisco 
Systems, Inc., in San Jose, CA, He has led 
iniƟaƟves that generated over $100 billion in 
revenues in the past decade. He is a pioneer in 
Internet standards for Enterprise SaaS, 
Enterprise Networking, IoT, and cybersecurity, 
holding over 25 patents 

No. of Shares held as on March 31, 2025 NA 

Terms & CondiƟons Liable to reƟre by rotaƟon  

RemuneraƟon Last Drawn NA 

RemuneraƟon sought to be paid NA 

Date of Original Appointment 25th March, 2025 
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Date of Appointment in current terms 25th March, 2025 

Directorships held in other companies 
including public and deemed public 
companies and excluding our Company, 
SecƟon 8 Companies, Struck off Companies 
and LLPs. 

EL Capitan Photonics Private Limited 

Memberships / Chairmanships of  

commiƩees of public companies* 

NA 

Inter-se RelaƟonship with other  

Directors.  

NA 

InformaƟon as required pursuant to  

NSE Circular No. NSE/CML/2018/24  

dated June 20, 2018 

Mr. Syam Sundar Venkata Appala is not 
debarred from holding the office of director 
pursuant to any SEBI order or any other 
authority 

Listed EnƟƟes from which Director has  

resigned as Director in past 3 years. 

NIL 
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To, 
MUFG lnƟme India Pvt Ltd 
C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park, L.B. S. 
 Marg, Vikhroli (West) Mumbai 400 083  
 
Dear Sir/Ma’am,  

Sub: UpdaƟon of Shareholder InformaƟon  

Ref: C2C ADVANCED SYSTEMS LIMITED  

I/we request you to record the following informaƟon against my/our folio no; 

Folio Number/DPID/Client ID No of Shares Held : 
Name of the Shareholder 1.  
Address of The First Holder  
Email Id  
PAN  Telephone No(s) 
Specimen Signature(s) 1.                                            2.   

 
AƩestaƟon By Bank Under Their Stamp 
Name of the officer 
AuthorizaƟon Code Number 
Contact Number 

 

I/We hereby declare that the parƟculars given above are correct and complete. If the transacƟon is 
delayed because of incomplete/incorrect informaƟon, I/we would not hold the Company /RTA 
responsible. I/We understand that the above details shall be maintained Ɵll I/we hold the securiƟes 
under above folio number. Pursuant to SecƟon 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule made 
thereunder, I also give consent to the company to send the NoƟces, Annual Reports etc. through 
electronically. 

Place:   Signature 

Date:  
 

____________________________________ 
Signature of sole/ First Holder 

Note:  
1. Shareholders who hold the shares in demat mode are requested to update the details with their Depository Participant.  

2. Members who hold shares in physical mode are requested to send this form duly filled and signed with their signature 
which shall be duly attested by their banker under their name, authorization code number, contact number and Account 
number with the bank.  

3. Attach following documents along with form;  

a Attested copy of the PAN card.  

b Attested copy of Aadhar Card/Passport/ration Card/Driving License/Voter Id (any one) (If PAN card is not obtained)  

c Attested copy of latest utility Bill (Telephone/Electricity/Gas) (any one) (if the address is changed)  

d In case of death of any holder kindly send attested copy of the death certificate 
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 DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 
To  

The Members 

The Board of Directors of your Company is pleased to present their report on the working of the 
Company for the year ended 31st March, 2025 together with the Audited Accounts of the Company.  

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE SUMMARY 

The Company's Audited Financial Statements as of March 31, 2025, have been meƟculously prepared 
in accordance with the applicable Ind AS, as well as RegulaƟon 33 of the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board 
of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 (SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons), 
and the perƟnent provisions outlined in the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act").  

The summarized financial highlight is depicted below: 

                                                                                                                          (₹ in Lakh) 

ParƟculars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 

Total Revenue 11745.90 4129.82 

Total Expenses 7633.72 2470.22 

Profit/(Loss) before Tax 4112.17 1659.60 

Current Tax 1057.61 417.90 

Deferred Tax 168.82 2.15 

Income Tax Expenses of Previous Year Incurred 1.79 11.85 

Profit/(Loss) aŌer tax 2883.95 1227.69 

 

 During the financial year, the revenue from operaƟon for the financial year ended on 31.03.2025 was 
Rs. 11,511.11(in lakhs). 
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 Furthermore, In Comparison to the Financial year 2024-25, the revenue from operaƟon was Rs. 4105.89 
(in lakhs) (Rupees Sixty-Four Lakhs Two Thousand) reported in the previous financial year ended on 
31.03.2024. 

 The Earnings per Share (EPS) for the year 2024-25 is INR 21.07, as against INR 15.85 in the previous year, 
reflecƟng a growth. The consistent increase in EPS highlights the company's commitment to enhancing 
shareholder value. 
 

STATE OF AFFAIRS 

C2C Advanced Systems is a soŌware-first, innovaƟon-driven technology company delivering end-to-end 
defense and industrial automaƟon soluƟons. Our key offerings include. 

 MAGI-C4ISR and MAGI-C4IX Plaƞorms – Advanced architectures that integrate command, control, 
communicaƟons, intelligence, surveillance, and reconnaissance. 
 Dual-Use Technologies – CapabiliƟes designed for both defense and industrial applicaƟons, 
strengthening diversificaƟon and resilience. 
 Specialized Technology Centers – FaciliƟes dedicated to command & control, automaƟon, 
cybersecurity, and data sciences. 

Our organizaƟonal model operates through business unit–based profit centers, encouraging 
accountability, entrepreneurship, and leadership development. 

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 

During the year there was no change in the nature of business of the company. 

DIVIDEND 

During the financial year 2024-25, The Company has not recommended any dividend for the year ended 
31st March, 2025. 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

For the period ended 31st March 2025, the Company has not transferred any amount to Reserve. 

LISTING OF SHARES ON SME PLATFORM OF NSE LIMITED  

During the financial year 2024-25, C2C Advanced Systems Limited has successfully listed its equity 
shares on the SME Plaƞorm of NSE Limited on December 03, 2024. This significant milestone marks a 
new chapter in the Company's growth journey, providing it with enhanced visibility and access to a 
broader investor base. 

During the course of the IniƟal Public Offering (IPO), the NaƟonal Stock Exchange (NSE) appointed an 
Independent Auditor, who has issued a report containing certain observaƟons dated 15th January, 2025. 
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The Company has duly submiƩed its response to the said observaƟons on 10th March, 2025, which is 
presently under review by the concerned department. 
 
UTILIZATION OF FUNDS 

The details of uƟlizaƟon of funds from IPO are as follows:  

 ParƟculars Total Amount 
(in Lakhs) 

UƟlized upto 31st 
March 2025 (in 
Lakhs) 

Un-UƟlized upto 
31st March 2025 (in 
Lakhs) 

Issue Related Expenses 750.00 677.67 72.33 
Working Capital Requirements 4,600.00 4,600.00 - 
Purchase of Fixed Assets & Fit-
outs 

1,931.10 1,931.10 - 

Towards Security Deposits 160.00 106.00 54 
General Corporate Purpose 2,465.83 1,472.00 993.83 
Total 9,906.93 8,786.77 1,120.16 

* Out of Net IPO proceeds which were unuƟlized as at March 31, 2025, INR 101.94 lakhs are lying in 
Escrow account maintained with IndusInd Bank and INR 1018.22 lakhs are temporarily invested in fixed 
deposit maintain with Yes Bank.  

CAPITAL AND DEBT STRUCTURE 

The authorized share capital of the Company as on 31st March,2025 is Rs. 17,00,00,000/- divided into 
1,70,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each. 

The issued, subscribed, and paid-up share capital as on 31st March,2025 Rs. 16,64,11,680/- divided into 
1,66,41,168 equity shares of Rs. 10 each. 

Pursuant to the IniƟal Public Offer of Equity Shares by the Company, the Board of Directors, in their 
meeƟng held on December 02nd, 2024, has alloƩed total 43,83,600 Equity Shares Rs. 10/- each to the 
successful alloƩees, whose list have been finalized by the Company, the Registrar to the issue and 
merchant banker in consultaƟon with NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

1.1. CONSTITUTION OF BOARD: 
The following is the constitution of Board of Directors and KMPs of the company as on 31st March, 2025: 
 

S. 
No. 

Name of the Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMPs) 

Designation 

1.  Ms. Lakshmi Chandra Managing Director 
2.  Mr. Kuriyedath Ramesh Whole-time director 
3.  Mr. Murtaza Ali Soomar Whole-time director 
4. Ms. Shashi Gupta Director 
5. Mr. Syam Sundar Venkata Appala Additional Director 
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6. Mr. Kishore Soni Independent Director 
7. Lt. Gen. (Retd.) PJS Pannu Independent Director 
8. Ms. Neha Gupta Independent Director 

 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

1 Mr. Ganapathy Subramanian Chief Financial Officer 
2 Mr. Manjeet Singh Company Secretary 

 
1.2. CHANGES IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DURING FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25 

Name of the Directors Date of Event Nature of Event 

Ms. Neha Gupta 30/09/2024 
Appointed as Additional 
Director (Non-executive 
Independent Director) 

Ms. Neha Gupta 28/12/2024 

Regularised from Additional 
Director (Non-executive 
Independent Director) to 
Director (Non-executive 
Independent Director) 

Mr. Syam Sundar Venkata 
Appala 

25/03/2025 
Appointed as Additional 
Director (Non-executive Non-
Independent Director) 

Mr. Kuriyedath Ramesh 28/12/2025 
Retirement by rotation and 
subsequent re-appointment 

 
1.3. BOARD MEETINGS 

During the year under review, 9 (Nine) Board Meetings were convened as and when required. The gap 
between two consecutive meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty days as provided in 
section 173 of the Act. The details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meeting are given below 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Date of the 
Board Meeting 

No. of Director 
entitled to attend 
the meeting 

No. of directors 
who         attended 
the Meeting 

Name of the Directors present 

1. 26/04/2024 6 4 

Mr. Kishore Soni  

Ms. Lakshmi Chandra  

Mr. Murtaza Ali Soomar 

Ms. Shashi Gupta 

2. 27/04/2024 6 4 

Mr. Kishore Soni  

Ms. Lakshmi Chandra  

Mr. Murtaza Ali Soomar 
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Ms. Shashi Gupta 

3. 23/08/2024 6 5 

Mr. Kishore Soni  
Ms. Lakshmi Chandra  
Mr. Murtaza Ali Soomar  
Ms. Shashi Gupta 
Lt. Gen. (Retd.) PJS Pannu 

4. 30/09/2024 6 5 

Mr. Kishore Soni  
Ms. Lakshmi Chandra  
Mr. Murtaza Ali Soomar  
Ms. Shashi Gupta 
Lt. Gen. (Retd.) PJS Pannu 

5. 26/10/2024 7 6 

Mr. Kishore Soni  
Ms. Lakshmi Chandra  
Mr. Murtaza Ali Soomar  
Ms. Shashi Gupta 
Lt. Gen. (Retd.) PJS Pannu 

Ms. Neha Gupta 

6. 11/11/2024 7 6 

Mr. Kishore Soni  
Ms. Lakshmi Chandra  
Mr. Murtaza Ali Soomar  
Ms. Shashi Gupta 
Lt. Gen. (Retd.) PJS Pannu 

Ms. Neha Gupta 

7. 25/11/2024 7 7 

Mr. Kishore Soni  
Ms. Lakshmi Chandra  
Mr. Murtaza Ali Soomar  
Ms. Shashi Gupta 
Lt. Gen. (Retd.) PJS Pannu 

Ms. Neha Gupta 

Mr. Kuriyedath Ramesh 

8. 02/12/2024 7 7 

Mr. Kishore Soni  
Ms. Lakshmi Chandra  
Mr. Murtaza Ali Soomar  
Ms. Shashi Gupta 
Lt. Gen. (Retd.) PJS Pannu 
Ms. Neha Gupta 
Mr. Kuriyedath Ramesh 

9. 19/03/2025 7 7 

Mr. Kishore Soni  
Ms. Lakshmi Chandra  
Mr. Murtaza Ali Soomar  
Ms. Shashi Gupta 
Lt. Gen. (Retd.) PJS Pannu 
Ms. Neha Gupta 
Mr. Kuriyedath Ramesh 

 
Furthermore, during the year under review, 2 (Two) Audit CommiƩee MeeƟngs, 2 (Two) NominaƟon 
and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee MeeƟng were convened and held: 
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Name of the 
MeeƟng 

Date of the 
Board 
MeeƟng 

No. of Director 
enƟtled to aƩend 
the meeƟng 

No. of 
directors who         
aƩended the 
MeeƟng 

Name of the 
Directors present 

Audit 
CommiƩee 
MeeƟng 

30/09/2024 3 3 Mr. Kishore Soni  
Lt. Gen. (Retd.) 
PJS Pannu 
Mr. Murtaza Ali 
Soomar 
 

Audit 
CommiƩee 
MeeƟng 

02/12/2024 3 3 Mr. Kishore Soni  
Lt. Gen. (Retd.) 
PJS Pannu 
Mr. Murtaza Ali 
Soomar 
 

Nomination & 
RemuneraƟon 
CommiƩee 
MeeƟng 

30/09/2024 3 3 Lt. Gen. (Retd.) 
PJS Pannu 
Mr. Kishore Soni  
Mrs. Shashi Gupta 

Nomination & 
RemuneraƟon 
CommiƩee 
MeeƟng 

19/03/2025 3 3 Lt. Gen. (Retd.) 
PJS Pannu 
Mr. Kishore Soni  
Mrs. Shashi Gupta 

 

GENERAL MEETINGS: 

During the year under review, the following General MeeƟngs were held, the details of which are given 
as under: 

Sr. 
no. 

Type of General MeeƟng Date of General MeeƟng 

1. Extra Ordinary General MeeƟng  29/04/2024 
2. Annual General MeeƟng  28/12/2024 

 

Disclosure by Directors: 

The Directors on the Board have submiƩed noƟce of interest under SecƟon 184(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 i.e. in Form MBP-1, inƟmaƟon under SecƟon 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 i.e. in Form 
DIR 8 and declaraƟon as to compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company. 

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS  

The Independent Directors have submitted their declarations of independence confirming that he/she 
met with the criteria of independence as laid out in section149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and under 
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  
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CHANGE IN REGISTERED OFFICE:  

During the financial year 2024-25, there was a change in registered office of the company within the 
local limits of city, town or village i.e., NO 86, Wings of Eagles, S S Commercial Estate Varthur Road, 
Nagavarapalya, C V Raman Nagar, Bangalore to Neil Rao Towers, 4th Floor, Cental Wing, 117 & 118, Road 
No 3, Vijayanagar, Epip Phase-1, Whitefield, Epip, Bangalore, 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

Your company has not directly or indirectly 

a)  Given any loan to any person or other body corporate other than usual advances envisaged in a 
contract of supply of materials if any, 

b)  given any guarantee or provide security in connecƟon with a loan to any other body corporate or 
person and 

c)  acquired by way of subscripƟon purchase or otherwise, the securiƟes of any other body corporate 
exceeding sixty percent, of its paid-up share capital, free reserve and securiƟes premium account or one 
hundred percent of its free reserves and securiƟes premium account whichever is more.  

WEB ADDRESS OF ANNUAL RETURN:  

In pursuance to SecƟon 92 and 134 (3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies 
(Management and AdministraƟon) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return for the financial year ended March 
31, 2025 will be placed on the Company’s website and can be accessed at   hƩps://c2c-as.com/. 

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relaƟng to ‘MeeƟngs of the 
Board of Directors’ and ‘General MeeƟngs’, respecƟvely, have been duly followed by the Company. 

 DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to the requirement under SecƟon 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to 
Directors’ Responsibility Statement, the Board of Directors of the Company hereby state and confirm 
that:  

a)  in the preparaƟon of the annual accounts, the applicable accounƟng standards have been followed 
along with proper explanaƟon relaƟng to material departures; 

b) the directors have selected such accounƟng policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and esƟmates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for 
the year under review; 
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c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounƟng 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for prevenƟng and detecƟng fraud and other irregulariƟes; 

d)   the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

e)  the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and operaƟng effecƟvely. 

f) The directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such 
internal financial controls are adequate and operaƟng effecƟvely.  

DETAILS OF THE ASSOCIATES/ JOINT VENTURE / SUBSIDIARIES COMPANIES: 

During the financial year 2024-25, The Company did not have any associates, joint ventures, or 
subsidiary companies. The Company conƟnues to focus on its core operaƟons and strategic iniƟaƟves 
to drive growth and enhance shareholder value. 

PARTICULAR OF EMPLOYEES 

The raƟo of the remuneraƟon of each whole-Ɵme director to the median of employees’ remuneraƟon 
as per SecƟon 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment 
and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Report as: ANNEXURE – A”. 

The statement containing names of top employees in terms of remuneraƟon drawn and the parƟculars 
of employees as required under SecƟon 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the 
Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is provided in a 
separate annexure forming part of this report. Further, the report and the accounts are being sent to 
the Members excluding the aforesaid annexure. In terms of SecƟon 136 of the Act, the said annexure is 
open for inspecƟon at the Registered Office of the Company. Any Member interested in obtaining a copy 
of the same may write to the Company Secretary. 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:  

During the year under review, all the related party transacƟons are entered on arm’s length basis, in the 
ordinary course of business and are in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015. There are 
materially significant related party transacƟons made by the Company with EnƟƟes in which Promoters, 
Directors are interested, which may have potenƟal conflict with the interest of the Company at large or 
which requires the approval of the shareholders.   

All Related Party Transactions to be entered with related parties are placed before the Audit Committee 
and the Board. Omnibus approval was obtained for the transactions which are foreseen and repetitive 
in nature. A statement of all related party transactions is presented before the Audit Committee, 
specifying the nature, value and terms and conditions of the transactions.  
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Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under Section 134(3) (h) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 as attached in the “ANNEXURE -B”. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO 

InformaƟon pursuant to SecƟon 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservaƟon of energy, technology absorpƟon and foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo 

 (A)        ConservaƟon of Energy 

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservaƟon of energy; 

The operaƟons of your Company are not energy intensive. However, adequate measures have been 
iniƟated to reduce energy consumpƟon. 

(ii) The steps taken by the company for uƟlizing alternate sources of energy; 

The operaƟons of your Company are not energy intensive. 

(iii)   the capital investment on energy conservaƟon equipments; -Nil 

(B)   Technology absorpƟon- 

(i)     The efforts made towards technology absorpƟon; - None 

(ii)   The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reducƟon, product development or import 
subsƟtuƟon; - Not Applicable 

(iii)  In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning 
of the financial year)- 

(a) The details of technology imported;   -        None 

(b) The year of import    -        Not Applicable 

(c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed; -        Not Applicable 

 (d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorpƟon   -        Not applicable 

Has not taken place, and the reasons thereof; and 

(iv)   The expenditure incurred on Research and Development.   - Nil 
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(C)   Foreign exchange Earnings and Outgo 

 During the period under review there was foreign exchange earnings or out flow. 

ParƟculars 2024-25 INR (in Lakhs) 2023-24 INR (in Lakhs) 

Foreign Outgo 1156.93 302.37 

Foreign In 3112.96 554.22 

STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

M/S Labs & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm RegistraƟon No. 021131C) are the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company.  There is no adverse remark of Statutory Auditors in the Audit Report for the 
FY 2024-25. 

COMMENTS ON AUDITORS’ REPORT 

There are no qualificaƟons, reservaƟons or adverse remarks or disclaimer made by the Statutory 
Auditors in their report requiring explanaƟon or comments from the Board of Directors as required 
under SecƟon 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The report of the Statutory Auditors along with notes 
to Schedules is enclosed to this Report.  

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12), OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE 
REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT. 

The Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Board of Directors of the Company. 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT 

As per secƟon 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules every Listed Company and 
unlisted public company having paid up share capital of Rs. 50.00 Crores or more or turnover of Rs. 250 
.00 Crores or more or every company having outstanding loans or borrowings from banks or public 
financial insƟtuƟons of Rs. 100 Crores or more shall annex with its Board’s report made in terms of sub-
secƟon (3) of secƟon 134, a secretarial audit report (Form No. MR.3), given by a Company Secretary in 
pracƟce, in such form as may be prescribed. The Audit CommiƩee has appointed M/s S. Khandelwal & 
Co, PracƟcing Company Secretary, as secretarial auditors on December 02nd, 2024 of the Company to 
conduct the secretarial audit for the financial year 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit report is aƩached as 
Annexure- C. 

 

 



 

    64 
 

C2C Advanced Systems 

INTERNAL AUDIT 

As per secƟon 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules every Listed Company and 
unlisted public company having paid up share capital of Rs. 50.00 Crores or more during the preceding 
financial year or turnover of Rs. 200 .00 Crores or more during the preceding financial year or 
outstanding loans or borrowings from banks or public financial insƟtuƟons of Rs. 100 Crores or more at 
any point of Ɵme during the preceding financial year or outstanding deposits of Rs, 25.00 Crores or 
more at any point of Ɵme during the preceding financial year and also applicable to private limited 
company, subject to specific limits; shall annex with its Board’s report, given by a Chartered Accountant 
or Cost Accountant, in such form as may be prescribed. The Audit CommiƩee has appointed M/s Ankit 
S Gupta & Co, on December 02nd, 2024, PracƟcing Chartered Accountant, as internal auditors of the 
Company to conduct the Internal Audit for the financial year 2024-25.  

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS  

The Directors state that the overall turnover of the company does not exceed the limit prescribed for 
maintenance of Cost Records as specified by the Central Government under SecƟon 148(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, accordingly such accounts and records are not made and maintained by the 
Company. 

DEPOSITS 

 
The Company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from the public during the year. There is no 
unclaimed or unpaid deposit lying with the Company as on the financial year end date.  

Deposits accepted during the year (including renewed during the year) Nil 

Deposits remained unpaid or unclaimed as the end of the year Nil 

Default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon during the  year 
and if so number of such cases and the total amount involved 

( i)     at the beginning of the year; 

maximum during the year 

at the end of the year 

Nil 

Deposits which are not in compliance with requirement of Chapter V of the    
Companies Act, 2013 

Nil 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

According to SecƟon 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 every company having a net worth of Rs 500 crore 
or more, or a turnover of over Rs 1,000 crore or a net profit exceeding Rs 5 crore in the proceeding 
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financial year shall consƟtute a CSR commiƩee of the Board consisƟng of three or more directors, out 
of which at least one director shall be an independent director. So, CSR is applicable on your Company. 

The Company has approved CSR policy and also ConsƟtuted Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩee 
in the meeƟng held on 19th January, 2024 as it is applicable on our company according to the provision 
of secƟon 135 of Companies Act 2013.   

Manner in which the amount spends during the financial year is detailed below: Not applicable 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company 
The Board of Directors has adopted a CSR Policy as recommended by the Corporate Social Responsibility 
CommiƩee, which comprise of Vision and Mission Statement, philosophy and objecƟves. 

2. ComposiƟon of the CSR CommiƩee 
S No. Name of director DesignaƟon 
1. Lt. Gen. (Retd.) PJS Pannu Independent Director 
2 Mr. Murtaza Ali Soomar Whole Time Director  
3 Mr. Kuriyedath Ramesh Whole Time Director 

 
3. Provide the web-link where ComposiƟon of CSR commiƩee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved 

by the Board are disclosed on the website of the company-  hƩps://c2c-as.com/ 
4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of 

rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (aƩach the 
report) - Not Applicable 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial 
year, if any   - Not Applicable 

6. Average net profit of the Company as per secƟon 135(5)- Rs.20,20,88,000/- 
7. CSR ObligaƟon of the Company-  

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per secƟon 135(5) 40,41,760/- 
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or acƟviƟes of 

the previous financial years 
- 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any - 
(d) Total CSR obligaƟon for the financial year (7a+7b-7c) 40,41,760/- 

8. CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year-  
a) Total Amount Spent for the Financial Year (in Rs): *NIL  

b) Amount Unspent (in Rs):  Rs.11,40,000/- 

*The company has not fulfilled CSR obligaƟon for the financial year 2024-25. However, the management has assured that 
they will transfer the CSR funds specified in Schedule VII as per secƟon 135 of companies Act, 2013 within due Ɵmeline, i.e. 
within six months aŌer the end of the financial year, specifically by September 30, 2024. This suggests that while the 
obligaƟon has not been met within the usual Ɵmeframe, the company intends to fulfill its CSR commitments by the extended 
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deadline. The Company has created provision for the same. Company has entered into an understanding for undertaking CSR 
AcƟviƟes with an enƟty however the project has not started yet. 

9. Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year- Not Applicable 
10. Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year -              Not 

Applicable 
11. Amount spent in AdministraƟve Overheads- Not Applicable 
12. Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable - Not Applicable 
13. Excess amount for set off, if any –NIL 
14. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years- 
15. Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial 

year(s) -   Not Applicable 
16. In case of creaƟon or acquisiƟon of capital asset, furnish the details relaƟng to the asset so created 

or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year – none 
17.  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as 

per secƟon 135(5)- Not Applicable 
 

STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH REFERENCE TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Pursuant to SecƟon 134 (3)(q) read with Rule 8(5) (viii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and ICAI 
guidance note on adequacy on internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, it is 
stated that there is adequate internal control system in the Company. 

GENERAL DISCLOSURE: 

Your Directors state that the Company has made disclosures in this report for the items prescribed in 
secƟon 134 (3) of the Act and Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other applicable 
provisions of the act and lisƟng regulaƟons, to the extent the transacƟons took place on those items 
during the year. 

1.1. Voluntary Revision of Financial Statements or Board’s Report  

The Company is complying with the provisions of SecƟon 129 or 134 of Companies Act, 2013     so there 
is no voluntary revision done by the company during financial year 2024- 25. 

1.2. Share Capital and Provision of Money by Company for Purchase of its Own Shares by Trustees or 
Employees for the Benefit of Employees 

Your Company has not issued any equity shares with differenƟal rights, sweat equity shares, employee 
stock opƟons and neither made any provision of money for purchase of its own shares by trustees or 
employees for the benefit of employees for the financial year ended 31.03.2025. 
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PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE: 

The Company has adopted a policy for prevenƟon of sexual harassment at the workplace, in line with 
the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (PrevenƟon, ProhibiƟon and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 (“POSH Act”). 

During the financial year under review, the Company has complied with all the provisions of the POSH 
Act and the rules framed thereunder. Further details are as follow: 

1. The number of sexual harassment complaints received during the year- NIL  

2. The number of such complaints disposed of during the year- NIL 

3. The number of cases pending for a period exceeding ninety days- NIL 

STATEMENT ON MATERNITY BENEFIT COMPLIANCE 

The Company is commiƩed to ensuring a safe, inclusive, and supporƟve workplace for all employees. In 
accordance with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, as amended, the Company has 
complied with all applicable provisions relaƟng to maternity benefits. The Company provides paid 
maternity leave, nursing breaks, and safeguards against terminaƟon or discriminaƟon on the grounds 
of maternity. Awareness iniƟaƟves are also conducted to ensure employees are informed about their 
rights under the Act. 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

The Board of Directors facilitates the execuƟon of Risk Management PracƟces in the Company, in the 
areas of risk idenƟficaƟon, assessment, monitoring, miƟgaƟon and reporƟng. At present the Company 
has not idenƟfied any element of risk which may threaten the existence of the Company. 

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED/UNPAID AMOUNT TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 

Pursuant to provisions of the Act read with the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund Authority 
(AccounƟng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, as amended, (‘Rules’), the dividend which remains 
unclaimed or unpaid for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to the Unpaid Dividend 
Account of the Company and shares on which dividend are unclaimed or unpaid for a consecuƟve period 
of seven years or more are liable to be transferred to IEPF. This clause is not applicable. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 

There were below menƟoned material changes and commitments affecƟng the financial posiƟon of the 
Company between the end of period to which these financial statements relate and the date of this 
Report: 

1. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company was increased from ₹17 Crores to ₹25 Crores at 
the Extraordinary General MeeƟng held on 25th July, 2025. 
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2. The Company has submiƩed an applicaƟon to the NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) 
seeking in-principle approval for the allotment of 13,93,400 Equity Shares of ₹10/- each and 
10,75,891 Equity Shares pursuant to the conversion of warrants issued under the PreferenƟal 
Allotment 

DETAILS OF APPLICATION/ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY 
CODE,2016  

Neither any applicaƟon was made nor any proceeding pending under the insolvency and bankruptcy 
code, 2016 (31 of2016) during the financial year.  

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME 
SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL 
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF.  

The company has not entered into any one-Ɵme seƩlement. 

SIGNIFICANT ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL 

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts /Tribunals which would 
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operaƟons. 

DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM, IF ANY, 

The threshold limit provided under SecƟon 177(9) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (MeeƟng of Board 
and its Power) Rule, 2014 is not applicable on the Company.  

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

We take the opportunity to express our deep sense of graƟtude to Bankers and customers for their 
conƟnued guidance and support. Your directors would like to record their sincere appreciaƟon of their 
dedicated efforts put in by employees across all levels in the organizaƟon, which have enabled the 
company to start operaƟons. And to you, our shareholders, we are deeply grateful for the confidence 
and faith that you have always placed on us. 

For C2C ADVANCED SYSTEMS LIMITED 

SD/-        SD/- 
MURTAZA ALI SOOMAR     LAKSHMI CHANDRA 
Whole-Ɵme Director      Managing Director 
DIN: 05194435                                       DIN: 07436752 
Add.:  85, Poorvi Marg, Vasant Vihar-1, South  Add: 9/1, ShanƟ Niketan, Chanakya                                     
West Delhi-110057  Puri, New Delhi-110021 
Date: 06/09/2025   
Place: New Delhi                                                                       
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
(Pursuant to Section 197(12) read with Rules made thereunder) 

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under 
Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made there under. 

 

A. Information as per Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014: 

a) The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of employees for the financial 
year and the Percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year: 

Sr. 
No.  

Name Designation Nature of 
Payment 

Ratio against 
median 
Employee’ 
Remuneration  

Percentage 
Increase as 
compared to 
Previous Year 

1. Laxmi Chandra   Managing Director Remuneration  NA NA 
2. Murtaza Ali 

Soomar 
Whole-Time Director Remuneration - 58.57% 

3. K. Ramesh Whole-Time Director Remuneration - -7.09% 
4. Shashi Gupta Director  Sitting Fees NA* NA* 
5. Kishore Soni Independent Director  Sitting Fees NA* NA* 
6. Lt. Gen. (Retd.) 

PJS Pannu 
Independent Director  Sitting Fees 

NA* NA* 

7. Neha Gupta Independent Director Sitting Fees NA* NA* 
8. 

Manjeet Singh 
Company Secretary 
and Compliance 
Officer 

Salary NA** NA** 

*The Percentage Increase as compared to Previous Year cannot be calculated as the Sitting fees was not paid in the previous 
year. 
** The percentage increase as compared to the previous year is not strictly comparable, as the remuneration for the previous 
year pertains to a period of only three months, owing to the appointment of the Company Secretary on 19th January, 2024. 

b) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company:  252 
 
 For C2C ADVANCED SYSTEMS LIMITED 
SD/-        SD/- 
MURTAZA ALI SOOMAR     LAKSHMI CHANDRA 
Whole-Ɵme Director      Managing Director 
DIN: 05194435                                       DIN: 07436752 
Add.:  85, Poorvi Marg, Vasant Vihar-1, South  Add: 9/1, ShanƟ Niketan, Chanakya                                     
West Delhi-110057  Puri, New Delhi-110021 
Date: 06/09/2025   
Place: New Delhi                                                                       
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FORM NO. AOC –2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

Form for disclosure of parƟculars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the 
company with related parƟes referred to in sub-secƟon (1) of secƟon 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transacƟons under third proviso 
thereto: 

 
1. DETAILS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS NOT AT ARM’S LENGTH BASIS:  

Sr. no. Particular Details 
a)  Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship NIL 
b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions NIL 
c)  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions NIL 
d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including 

the value, if any 
NIL 

e)  Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or 
transactions 

NIL 

f)  Date(s) of approval by the board NIL 
g)  Amount paid as advances, if any NIL 
h)  Date on which the special resoluƟon was passed in General meeƟng as 

required under first proviso to secƟon 188  
 

NIL 

 

2. DETAILS OF MATERIAL CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS AT ARM’S LENGTH BASIS: 
TRANSACTION 1: 

Sr. no. Particular Details 
a) Name(s) of the related party and nature   

of relationship 
C2C Innovations Pvt. Ltd. 
(Promoter Company) 

b)  Nature of contracts / arrangements / 
transactions 

Loan and Advances 

c)  Duration of the contracts/ arrangements 
/transactions 

Yearly 

d)  Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions including the 
value, if any 

Contracts or arrangements or 
transactions are at arm’s length basis 
amounting  Rs. 4112.11156  (in Lakh) 

e)  Date(s) of approval by the board 26/04/2024 
f)  Amount paid as advances, if any Rs. 286.03 (in Lakhs) 
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TRANSACTION 2: 

Sr. no.Particular Details 

a)  Name(s) of the related party and nature of 
relationship 

PVR Multimedia Pvt. Ltd.  
(Promoter Company) 

b)  Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ 
transactions Advance 

c)  Duration of the contracts/arrangements 
/transactions Yearly 

d)  Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions including the 
value, if any 

Contracts or arrangements or 
transactions are at arm’s length basis 
amounting Rs. 25 (in Lakh) 

e) Date(s) of approval by the board 26/04/2024 
f) Amount paid as advances, if any Rs. 25 (in Lakh) 

 

TRANSACTION 3: 

Sr. no.Particular Details 

g)  Name(s) of the related party and nature of 
relationship 

Realtime Techsolutions Pvt. Ltd. 
(Subsidiary of Promoter Company) 

h)  Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ 
transactions Claim for Reimbursement of Expenses 

i)  Duration of the contracts/arrangements 
/transactions Yearly 

j)  Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions including the 
value, if any 

Contracts or arrangements or 
transactions are at arm’s length basis 
amounting Rs. 153.10 (in Lakh) 

k) Date(s) of approval by the board 26/04/2024 
l) Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

 

For C2C ADVANCED SYSTEMS LIMITED 

SD/-        SD/- 
MURTAZA ALI SOOMAR     LAKSHMI CHANDRA 
Whole-Ɵme Director      Managing Director 
DIN: 05194435                                       DIN: 07436752 
Add.:  85, Poorvi Marg, Vasant Vihar-1, South  Add: 9/1, ShanƟ Niketan, Chanakya                                     
West Delhi-110057  Puri, New Delhi-110021 
 
Date: 06/09/2025   
Place: New Delhi                                                                
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FORM-MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2025 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 
The Members,  
C2C ADVANCED SYSTEMS LIMITED 
 Neil Rao Towers, 4th Floor, central Wing,  
117 & 118, Road No 3,  
Vijayanagar, EPIP Phase-1,  
Whitefield, Bangalore- 560066 
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by C2C ADVANCED SYSTEMS LIMITED (hereinafter called “the 
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts /statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility:  
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of the applicable laws and maintenance 
of records based on audit. We have conducted the audit in accordance with the applicable AudiƟng 
Standards issued by The InsƟtute of Company Secretaries of India. The AudiƟng Standards requires that 
the Auditor shall comply with statutory and regulatory requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records.  
 
Due to the inherent limitaƟons of audit including internal, financial and operaƟng controls, there is an 
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or material non-compliances may not be detected, 
even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the Standards. 
 
Unmodified opinion:  
 
Based on Our verificaƟon of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the informaƟon provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorised representaƟves during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report 
that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st 
March, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and as 
reported hereinaŌer. 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by C2C ADVANCED SYSTEMS LIMITED for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 
according to the provisions of: 
 

i. The Companies Act, 2013(the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’)and the rules made thereunder;   
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iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;   
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act,1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings;   

v. The Regulations prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,1992 (‘SEBI 
Act’) viz.:-   
 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations,2011; 

b) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
c) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

RegulaƟons, 2018 
d) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

RegulaƟons, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period) 
e) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue and LisƟng of Non-ConverƟble SecuriƟes) 

RegulaƟons, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the audit period) 
f) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

RegulaƟons,1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
g) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (DelisƟng of Equity Shares) RegulaƟons, 2021; (Not 

Applicable to the Company during the audit period) 
h) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of SecuriƟes) RegulaƟons, 2018 (Not 

Applicable to the Company during the audit period); and 
i) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 

RegulaƟons, 2015 ("LisƟng RegulaƟons”);  
j) SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and ParƟcipants) RegulaƟons, 2018;. 

 
vi. and other applicable laws like:  

 TaxaƟon Laws 
 Labor Laws and Social Security Laws – such as Employees State Insurance Act, 1948; 

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972; Contract Labor (RegulaƟon and AboliƟon) Act, 1970; 
Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, The Equal RemuneraƟon Act 1976; Employees Provident Funds 
And Miscellaneous Act, 1952  

 IT Related Laws – InformaƟon Technology Act, 2000; 
 Miscellaneous Laws –Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (PrevenƟon, ProhibiƟon 

and RegulaƟon) Act, 2013 
 

 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of Indiaw.r.t. Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS - 1) and General 
Meeting (SS – 2). 

 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 
 
We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance 
of Executive Director, Non-Executive Directors, and Independent Directors. The changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out 
in compliance with the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations. 
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Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 
on agenda were sent in advance except notes and documents in the nature of unpublished price 
sensiƟve informaƟon within the meaning of the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (ProhibiƟon of 
Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 2015, in respect whereof the relevant notes, documents and informaƟon 
were put for the consideraƟon of the Board and CommiƩee members, at the relevant meeƟngs aŌer 
following the procedure laid down in this regard and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
parƟcipation at the meeting. 
 
All decisions of the Board and Committees were carried with requisite majority. 
 
We further report that 
 

1. During the period under review the company has successfully listed its equity shares on the 
SME Platform of NSE Limited on December 03, 2024. 
 

 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with 
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. The Company has introduced compliance alert system for applicability of 
all applicable laws, rules, regulaƟons and guidelines. 
 
For S. Khandelwal & Co. 
(Company Secretaries) 
 
 
(Sanjay Khandelwal) 
FCS No. 5945 
C P No.: 6128 
UDIN: F005945G001161935  
  
Place: New Delhi 
Date:  03/09/2025 
 
 
  
 
This report is to be read with our leƩer of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an 
integral part of this report. 
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‘Annexure A’ 
To, 
The Members, 
C2C ADVANCED SYSTEMS LIMITED 
 Neil Rao Towers, 4th Floor, Cental Wing,  
117 & 118, Road No 3,  
Vijayanagar, EPIP Phase-1,  
Whitefield, Bangalore- 560066 
  
Our report of even date is to be read along with this leƩer. 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.  

2. We have followed the audit pracƟces and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verificaƟon was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe 
that the processes and pracƟces, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the Company.  

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representaƟon about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulaƟons and happening of events etc.  

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulaƟons, 
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examinaƟon was limited to the verificaƟon 
of procedures on test basis.  

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor of the efficacy or effecƟveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 
the Company.  

7. The maximum liability of our firm under the secretarial audit in respect of the aggregate of all 
claims shall not exceed the fee charged by us.  

  
 For S. Khandelwal & Co. 
(Company Secretaries) 
 
SD/- 
(Sanjay Khandelwal) 
FCS No. 5945 
C P No.: 6128 
UDIN: F005945G001161935 
  
 
Place: New Delhi 
Date:  03/09/2025 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(Pursuant to RegulaƟon 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI  

(LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015) 
 
To, 
The Members of 
C2C ADVANCED SYSTEMS LIMITED 
Neil Rao Towers, 4th Floor, Central Wing,  
117 & 118, Road No 3,  
Vijayanagar, EPIP Phase-1,  
Whitefield, Bangalore- 560066 
  
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 
Directors of C2C Advanced Systems Limited having CIN L72200KA2018PLC110361 and having 
registered office located at Neil Rao Towers, 4th Floor, Central Wing,117 & 118, Road No 
3,Vijayanagar, EPIP Phase-1,Whitefield, Bangalore- 560066 (hereinaŌer referred to as ‘the 
Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this CerƟficate, in 
accordance with RegulaƟon 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the SecuriƟes 
Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015. 
 
In my opinion and to the best of my informaƟon and according to the verificaƟons (including 
Directors IdenƟficaƟon Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered 
necessary and explanaƟons furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby cerƟfy that 
none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as on 31st March, 2025 have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or conƟnuing as Directors of companies by the SecuriƟes and 
Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority. 
 
Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / conƟnuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these based on my verificaƟon. This cerƟficate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company nor of the efficiency or effecƟveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company. 

 
 For S. Khandelwal & Co. 
(Company Secretaries) 
 
SD/- 
(Sanjay Khandelwal) 
FCS No. 5945 
C P No.: 6128 
UDIN:  F005945G001189490 
  
Place: New Delhi 
Date:06/09/2025       
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Members of C2C ADVANCED SYSTEMS LIMITED 
 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of C2C Advanced Systems Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 and the Statement of Profit and 
Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and a 
summary of significant accounƟng policies, notes to accounts and other explanatory informaƟon.  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, the 
aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the informaƟon required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the AccounƟng 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025 and 
its profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flow for the year then ended. 
 
Basis of Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on AudiƟng (SAs) specified u/s 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘The Act”). Our responsibiliƟes under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditor’s ResponsibiliƟes for the Audit of the Financial Statements secƟon of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibiliƟes in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 
 
Emphasis of MaƩer 
 
We draw aƩenƟon to Note No. 35(e) to the Ind AS Financial Statements of the company. Based on some 
complaints, NaƟonal Stock Exchange (“NSE”) had ordered a limited review of the company through an 
Independent Auditor. NSE had appointed BDO (“reviewer”) for the same and the report of the reviewer 
is available on the portal. ThereaŌer, NSE sought clarificaƟons from the company on the observaƟons 
of the reviewer as menƟoned in their report for which company has given detailed submission to NSE 
with relevant supporƟng documents/evidences and opinions in March 2025. No acƟon or any monetary 
penalty has been ordered by NSE as on date of signing of Ind AS Financial Statements.  
 
Based on the advice of external legal counsels, no adjustment has been considered in these Ind AS 
Financial Statements by the management in respect of above maƩer. Our Opinion is not modified in 
respect of this maƩer.  
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InformaƟon Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon: 
 
The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s 
Report including Annexure to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance 
and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. 

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, 
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary 
actions, as applicable under the relevant laws & regulations. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial 
Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the maƩers stated in SecƟon 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparaƟon of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
posiƟon and financial performance of the Company in accordance with accounƟng principles generally 
accepted in India, including the AccounƟng Standards specified under SecƟon 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounƟng records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for prevenƟng and detecƟng 
frauds and other irregulariƟes; selecƟon and applicaƟon of appropriate accounƟng policies; making 
judgments and esƟmates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementaƟon and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng records, relevant to the preparaƟon and presentaƟon of 
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to conƟnue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, maƩers related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounƟng unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operaƟons, or has no realisƟc alternaƟve but to do so.  
 
Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporƟng process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility for Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objecƟves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
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an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepƟcism throughout the audit. We also: 

• IdenƟfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements whether 
due to fraud or error design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecƟng 
a material misstatement resulƟng from fraud is higher than for one resulƟng from error as fraud may 
involve collusion forgery intenƟonal omissions misrepresentaƟons or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under secƟon 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to Standalone Financial Statements in place and the operaƟng effecƟveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounƟng policies used and the reasonableness of accounƟng 
esƟmates and related disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by the Management and 
Board of Directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern 
basis of accounƟng and based on the audit evidence obtained whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or condiƟons that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to conƟnue as 
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw aƩenƟon in 
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or if such 
disclosures are inadequate to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However future events or condiƟons may cause the 
Company to cease to conƟnue as a going concern. 

•Evaluate the overall presentaƟon structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements 
including the disclosures and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying 
transacƟons and events in a manner that achieves fair presentaƟon. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in the 
aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quanƟtaƟve materiality and qualitaƟve factors in 
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and evaluaƟng the results of our work, and (ii) evaluaƟng the 
effect of any idenƟfied misstatements in the Financial Statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other maƩers the planned 
scope and Ɵming of the audit and significant audit findings including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we idenƟfy during our audit. 



 

    80 
 

C2C Advanced Systems 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with the mall relaƟonships and 
other maƩers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and where applicable 
related safeguards. 

From the maƩers communicated with those charged with governance we determine those maƩers that 
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and 
are therefore the key audit maƩers. We describe these maƩers in our auditors' report unless law or 
regulaƟon precludes public disclosure about the maƩer or when in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a maƩer should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communicaƟon. 

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
As required by secƟon 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:  
 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the informaƟon and explanaƟons which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;  
 
(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as 

it appears from our examinaƟon of those books;  
 
(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of changes in equity & Statement 

of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;  
 
(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the AccounƟng Standards 

specified under secƟon 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;  
 
(e) On the basis of wriƩen representaƟons received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, and taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025, from 
being appointed as a director in terms of secƟon 164 (2) of the Act.  

 

(f) With respect to the other maƩers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of secƟon 197(16) of the Act, as amended:  

 
In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, the 
remuneraƟon paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the 
provision of secƟon 197 of the Act. 
 

(g) With respect to the other maƩers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon 
and according to the explanaƟons given to us:  
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i) The Company does not have any pending liƟgaƟon which would impact its financial posiƟon.  
 

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivaƟve contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses.  

 
iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor EducaƟon and 

ProtecƟon Fund by the Company.  
 

iv) a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person or enƟty, 
including foreign enƟƟes (“intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in 
wriƟng or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest 
in other person or enƟty idenƟfied in any manner whatsoever by or behalf of the company 
(“ulƟmate beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
UlƟmate beneficiaries. 

 

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been received by the company from any person or enƟty including foreign enƟƟes 
(“Funding ParƟes”) with the understanding, whether recorded in wriƟng or otherwise, that 
the company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other person or enƟty 
idenƟfied in any manner whatsoever by or behalf of the Funding Party (“UlƟmate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ulƟmate 
beneficiaries; and 

 
c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to the noƟce that has caused us to believe that 
representaƟons under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 

 
v)  The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. 

 
vi) Based on our examinaƟon, the company has used accounƟng soŌware for maintaining of its 

books of account which has the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility in terms of 
the Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the same was used 
throughout the year for all relevant transacƟons except for Maintaining the inventory records, 
for which the company is using spreadsheets. 

 
(h) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-secƟon (11) of SecƟon 143 of the Act, we give in the 
Annexure-A a statement on the maƩers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 
extent applicable.   
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(i) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial 
statements of the company and the operaƟng effecƟveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate report in Annexure-B. 

 
For LABS & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm RegistraƟon No. 021131C 
 
 
 
 
SD/- 
CA Rohit Gupta  
Partner 
Membership No. 571943 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 30th May 2025 
 
UDIN: 25571943BMHWJU8681 
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Annexure-A to Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

Referred to in clause (h) of “Report on other legal & regulatory requirements” secƟon of the 
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of C2C Advanced Systems Limited on the 
financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025. 
 
In terms of the informaƟon and explanaƟons sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the books 
of account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our knowledge 
and belief, we report that: 
 
i. (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full parƟculars, including quanƟtaƟve 

details and situaƟon, of Property, Plant and Equipment. 
(B) The Company doesn’t have any Intangible Assets and therefore reporƟng under this clause 
is not applicable. 

 
(b)  The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a 
phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our opinion, 
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the 
programme, a porƟon of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been physically verified by the 
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noƟced on such verificaƟon.   
 
(c)  Company doesn’t hold any immovable property (other than properƟes where the company is 
lessee and the lease agreement are duly executed in favour of the lessee) as disclosed in Note-1 on 
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets (Right to use asset). Hence reporƟng under this 
clause is not applicable. 
 
(d)    The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during the 
year. Accordingly, the reporƟng under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.  
 
(e)    Based on the informaƟon and explanaƟons furnished to us, no proceedings have been iniƟated 
on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the ProhibiƟon of Benami 
Property TransacƟons Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami TransacƟons 
(ProhibiƟon) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the quesƟon of our 
commenƟng on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in the standalone 
financial statements does not arise. 
 
ii.  (a) The physical verificaƟon of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 
Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedures of such verificaƟon 
by Management is appropriate. The discrepancies noƟced on physical verificaƟon of inventory as 
compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory.   
 
(b)  During the year, the Company has not been sancƟoned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 
crores, in aggregate, in aggregate, at any points of Ɵme during the year, from banks or financial 
insƟtuƟons on the basis of security of current assets and hence reporƟng under clause 3(ii)(b) of the 
Order is not applicable. 
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ii.   The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee and security and 
granted any loans and advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, 
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parƟes during the year. 

 
(a) The Company has not provided loans and advances in the nature of loan during the year. 
 
(b) The company has not made any investment or granted any loan during the year and hence 
reporƟng under this clause is not applicable. 
 
(c) In respect of loans and advances in nature of loans, no schedule of repayment of principle and 
interest is sƟpulated and hence reporƟng under this clause is not applicable. 
 
(d) The company has not granted loan during the year and hence reporƟng under this clause is not 
applicable. 
 
(e) There are no loans granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year and have been 
renewed and extended. Hence, reporƟng under clause 3(iii)(e) is not applicable. 
 
(f) The Company has not given any loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms 
or period of repayment hence reporƟng under this clause is not applicable. 
 
(iv) The Companies has complied with the provisions of secƟons 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 
in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security provided, as applicable. 
 
(v) In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the Company has 
not accepted any deposits. Therefore, the reporƟng of clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company. 
 
(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-
secƟon (1) of secƟon 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business acƟviƟes carried out by the 
Company. Hence, reporƟng under clause (vi) of the order is not applicable to the company. 
 
(vii) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons are given to us and on the basis of our 
examinaƟon of the records of the Company, in respect of statutory dues; 
 
(a) In our opinion, except for the instances menƟoned below, the company has been regular in 

deposiƟng undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Income-tax, GST and other 
statutory dues to the relevant authoriƟes. According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given 
to us, no undisputed amounts, except the dues menƟoned below, payable in respect of Goods 
and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs and 
other statutory dues were in arrears, as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable. 
 

Name of the 
Statute 

Nature of Dues Amount 
(in INR Lakhs) 

Period to which 
amount relates 

Date of Payment 

Income Tax Act, 
1961 

Demand u/s 
143(1)(a) 

3.08 AY 2023-24 Not paid yet 
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(b) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, as of March 31, 2025, there are no dues of Goods and Service Tax  or duty of customs 
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 
 
(viii) According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, as at March 31, 2025, there were no such transacƟons relaƟng to previously 
unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 
 
(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment 
of interest thereon to any lender. 
 
(b) The Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial insƟtuƟon or 
government or any government authority. 
 
(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and therefore reporƟng under this 
clause is not applicable.  
 
(d) On an overall examinaƟon of the financial statements of the company, the company has not raised 
unsecured short term funds from NBFC and hence reporƟng under this clause is not applicable. 
 
(e) On an overall examinaƟon of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken 
Inter Corporate Deposit from the holding company on account of or to meet the obligaƟons of its 
subsidiaries and hence reporƟng under this clause is not applicable. 
 
(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on pledge of securiƟes and hence reporƟng 
on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 
 
(x) (a) The Company has raised INR 99.07 Crores by way of an iniƟal public offer during the year. As 
on 31st March 2025, company has spent INR 87.87 Crores out of the same and out of the balance 
amount INR 10.18 Crores is held in fixed deposits and INR 1.02 Crores are lying in Escrow Account. 
The company has uƟlized the amount as per the objects menƟoned in prospectus of the company. 
No deviaƟon was observed in this regard. 
 
(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferenƟal allotment or private placement of 
shares or converƟble debentures (fully or partly or opƟonally) and hence reporƟng under clause 
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 
 
(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, No 
fraud by the Company and on the company has been noƟced or reported during the year. 
 
(b) No report under sub-secƟon (12) of secƟon 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government, during the year and upto the date of this report. 
 
(c) As informed, the Company has not received any whistle-blower complaints during the year and 
upto the date of this report. 
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(xii) The company is not a Nidhi company, therefore the provisions of paragraph 3(xii) of the order is 
not applicable. 
 
(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with secƟons 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 
2013 with respect to applicable transacƟons with the related parƟes and the details of related party 
transacƟons have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounƟng 
standards. 
 
(xiv)(a) In our opinion, company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature 
of its business. 
  
(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us. 
 
(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transacƟon with directors or persons connected 
with him and therefore the provisions of secƟon 192 of the Companies Act 2013 are not applicable 
to the Company. 
 
(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under secƟon 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporƟng under clause 3(xvi)(a) & (b) of the Order is not applicable. 
 
 (b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core 
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) DirecƟons, 2016) and accordingly reporƟng under clause 
3(xvi)(c) & (d) of the Order is not applicable. 
 
(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding 
financial year. 
 
(xviii) There has been no resignaƟon of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 
(xix) On the basis of the financial raƟos, ageing and expected dates of realizaƟon of financial assets 
and payment of financial liabiliƟes, other informaƟon accompanying the financial statements and 
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examinaƟon of 
the evidence supporƟng the assumpƟons, nothing has come to our aƩenƟon, which causes us to 
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicaƟng that 
Company is not capable of meeƟng its liabiliƟes exisƟng at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 
 
(xx) Corporate Social Responsibility 
(a) The company was required to spend INR 11.40 Lakhs during the year as required under secƟon 

135(5) of the Act. The amount remained unspent is  required to be transferred to a fund specified 
in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub secƟon 
5 of secƟon 135 of the Act. Disclosure for the same is made by the company in Note-27 of the 
Financial Statement.  
 

(b) Unspent amount of INR 11.40 Lakhs under sub-secƟon (5) of secƟon 135 of the Companies Act, 
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has not been transferred to special account in compliance with the provision of sub-secƟon (6) 
of secƟon 135 of the said Act. 

 
(xxi) There is no consolidaƟon of financial statements, accordingly reporƟng under this clause is not 
applicable. 
 

For LABS & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm RegistraƟon No. 021131C 
 
 
SD/- 
CA Rohit Gupta  
Partner 
Membership No. 571943 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 30th May 2025 
 
UDIN: 25571943BMHWJU8681 
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Annexure-B to Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

Referred to in clause (i) of “Report on other legal & regulatory requirements” secƟon of the 
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of C2C Advanced Systems Limited on the 
financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025. 
 
Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporƟng under clause (i) of sub - secƟon 3 of 
secƟon 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporƟng of C2C Advanced Systems 
Limited (“the Company”) as at March 31, 2025, in conjuncƟon with our audit of the financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporƟng criteria established by the Company 
considering the essenƟal components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟng issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. These responsibiliƟes include the design, implementaƟon and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevenƟon and detecƟon of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounƟng records, and the Ɵmely preparaƟon of reliable financial 
informaƟon, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditors’ responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporƟng of 
the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟng (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the 
InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on audiƟng prescribed under SecƟon 143 
(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those 
standards and the guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporƟng were established and maintained and if such controls operated effecƟvely in all 
material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporƟng and their operaƟng effecƟveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporƟng included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporƟng, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tesƟng and 
evaluaƟng the design and operaƟng effecƟveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system over financial reporƟng. 
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Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporƟng 
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporƟng is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporƟng and the preparaƟon of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounƟng principles. A 
company’s internal financial control over financial reporƟng includes those policies and procedures that 
(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transacƟons and disposiƟons of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that 
transacƟons are recorded as necessary to permit preparaƟon of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounƟng principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisaƟons of management and directors of the company; and (iii) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevenƟon or Ɵmely detecƟon of unauthorised acquisiƟon, 
use, or disposiƟon of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 

Inherent limitaƟons of internal financial controls over financial reporƟng 
Because of the inherent limitaƟons of internal financial controls over financial reporƟng, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projecƟons of any evaluaƟon of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporƟng to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporƟng may become inadequate because of changes in condiƟons, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 

Opinion 
In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporƟng and such 
internal financial controls over financial reporƟng were operaƟng effecƟvely as at March 31, 2025, 
based on the internal control over financial reporƟng criteria established by the Company considering 
the essenƟal components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial ReporƟng issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 

Other maƩers 
We bring to the aƩenƟon of the users that the audit of the internal financial control system over 
financial reporƟng and the operaƟng effecƟveness of such internal financial controls over financial 
reporƟng has been performed remotely in the condiƟons morefully explained in the Other MaƩers 
Paragraph of our Independent Audit Report on the audit of the Financial Statements. 
 
Our opinion on the internal financial control system over financial reporƟng is not modified in respect 
of the above. 
 
For LABS & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm RegistraƟon No. 021131C 
SD/- 
CA Rohit Gupta  
Partner 
Membership No. 571943 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 30th May 2025 
UDIN: 25571943BMHWJU8681 
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(All Amount in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No.
 As at 

Mar 31, 2025 
 As at 

Mar 31, 2024 

I. ASSETS

(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
   (i)  Property, Plant & Equipment 294.50                                 23.51                                         
   (ii) Intangible Assets 218.68                                 249.32                                       
   (iii) Intangible Assets under Development -                                      -                                            
   (iv) Right to Use Assets 876.37                                 141.31                                       
   (v) Capital work-in-progress 2,556.74                              -                                            
(b) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 2a -                                      2.03                                           
(c) Other Non-Current Assets 3 158.61                                 150.32                                       

(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 4 5,882.60                              655.03                                       
(b) Financial Assets
   (i) Trade Receivables 5 10,995.87                            4,269.51                                    
   (ii) Cash & Cash Equivalents 6 171.82                                 1,540.52                                    
   (iii) Other Current Financial Assets 7 2,380.72                              747.29                                       
(c) Other Current Assets 8 2,708.92                              804.67                                       

TOTAL 26,244.83                            8,583.51                                    

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 9 1,664.12                              1,225.76                                    
(b) Other Equity 10 18,094.82                            6,419.97                                    
(c) Share Application Money Pending Allotment -                                            

(2) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
    (i) Long-Term Borrowings 11 -                                      -                                            
(b) Long Term Provisions 12 63.25                                   26.40                                         
(c) Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 2a 166.79                                 
(d) Lease Liability 14 817.51                                 

(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
   (i) Short-Term Borrowings 13 3,761.02                              -                                            
  (ii) Lease Liability 14 53.12                                   111.70                                       
 (iii) Trade Payables
       - Total Outstanding Dues of Micro & Small Enterprises 16.44                                   -                                            
       - Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than Micro & 
Small Enterprises

256.64                                 217.79                                       

(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 16 265.63                                 162.67                                       
(b) Provisions 17 1,085.49                              419.23                                       

TOTAL 26,244.83                            8,583.51                                    

The accompanying notes 1 to 35 are an integral part of the financial statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our Report of even date.

For and on behalf on FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
LABS & Associates C2C Advanced Systems Limited
Chartered Accountants (formerly C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited)
FRN: 021131C CIN: L72200KA2018PLC110361

CA Rohit Gupta Lakshmi Chandra Murtaza Ali Soomar
Partner (Managing Director) (Director & CFO)
Membership No. 571943 DIN: 07436752 DIN: 05194435

Place: NOIDA
Date: 30th May 2025 Manjeet Singh

(Company Secretary)
PAN: DDSPS0240G
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Ind AS Statement of Assets & Liabilities
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(All Amount in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Sr. No Particulars Note No.
 for the year ended 

Mar 31, 2025 
 for the year ended 

Mar 31, 2024 

I Revenue from Operations 18 11,511.11                4,105.89                     
II Other Income 19 234.78                     23.93                          

III. Total Revenue (I +II) 11,745.90                4,129.82                     
IV Expenses:

Cost of Equipment & Software Licences 20 10,316.61                1,488.96                     
Changes in Inventories 21 (5,227.58)                 (524.66)                       
Employee benefits Expenses 22 1,217.94                  931.16                        
Finance Cost 23 91.79                       78.66                          
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 1 172.72                     118.19                        
Other Expenses 24 1,062.24                  377.90                        

Total Expenses (V) 7,633.72                  2,470.22                     

VI Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (III-V) 4,112.17                  1,659.60                     
VII Exceptional Items -                           -                              
VIII Profit before extraordinary items and tax (VI + VII) 4,112.17                  1,659.60                     

IX Extraordinary Items
X Profit before tax (VIII - IX) 4,112.17                  1,659.60                     
XI Tax expenses:

 (1) Current Tax                                                        2b 1,057.61                  417.90                        
 (2) Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) 2a 168.82                     2.15                            

XII Profit(Loss) after Tax and before Prior Period Items (X-XI) 2,885.74                 1,239.54                    

XIII Prior Period Items
    -Income Tax Expenses of Previous Year Incurred 1.79                         11.85                          

XIV Profit(Loss) after Tax (XII-XIII) 2,883.95                 1,227.69                    
XV Other Comprehensive Income

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss -                             
(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit 
or loss

-                             

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss -                             

(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit or 
loss

-                             

Total Other Comprehensive Income (XV) -                          -                             
XVI Earning per equity share: (In INR)

       (1) Basic 25 21.07                       15.85                          
       (2) Diluted 21.07                       15.85                          

The accompanying notes 1 to 35 are an integral part of the financial statements

This is the Profit & Loss Account referred to in our Report of even date.

For and on behalf on FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
LABS & Associates C2C Advanced Systems Limited
Chartered Accountants (formerly C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited)
FRN: 021131C CIN: L72200KA2018PLC110361

CA Rohit Gupta Lakshmi Chandra Murtaza Ali Soomar
Partner (Managing Director) (Director & CFO)
Membership No. 571943 DIN: 07436752 DIN: 05194435

Place: NOIDA
Date: 30th May 2025 Manjeet Singh

(Company Secretary)
PAN: DDSPS0240G

C2C Advanced Systems Limited
(Formerly known as C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited )

Ind AS Statement of Profit and Loss



 

    92 
 

C2C Advanced Systems 

 

(All Amount in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

S. No. Particulars
 for the year ended 

Mar 31, 2025 
 for the year ended 

Mar 31, 2024 
I CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before Tax and exceptional items 4,112.17                            1,659.60                                       
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 172.72                               118.19                                          
Provision for Gratuity 52.00                                 8.84                                              
Provision for CSR 11.40                                 -                                               
Finance Cost 45.05                                 78.66                                            
Finance Income (81.26)                                (5.39)                                            
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 4,312.08                            1,859.91                                       

Net Changes in Trade Payables 38.85                                 (159.57)                                        
Net Changes in Other Current Financial Liabilities 78.19                                 (42.91)                                          
Net Change in Lease Liability (58.58)                                (86.77)                                          
Net Changes in Trade Receivables (6,726.36)                           (3,370.48)                                     
Net Changes in Other Current Financial Assets (1,633.43)                           (554.74)                                        
Net Changes in Other Current Assets (1,904.25)                           (636.13)                                        
Net Changes in Inventories (5,227.58)                           (524.66)                                        
Cash Generated from Operations (11,121.06)                         (3,515.35)                                     
Less: Payment of Taxes (net of refunds) (402.44)                              (11.85)                                          
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities (11,523.50)                         (3,527.20)                                     

II CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net Changes in Property, Plant & Equipment (302.79)                              (9.67)                                            
Net Changes in Intangible Assets (0.77)                                  -                                               
Net Changes in Capital Work in Progress (2,556.74)                           -                                               
Net Changes in Other Non- Current Assets (8.29)                                  (75.02)                                          
Interest Income 78.16                                 2.64                                              

Net Cash used in Investing Activities (2,790.43)                           (82.05)                                          

III CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Change in Share Capital (net of bonus shares) 438.36                               625.76                                          
Net Changes in Security Premium 8,790.91                            5,540.14                                       
Finance Cost (45.05)                                (71.53)                                          
Net Change in Short-Term Borrowings 3,761.02                            (944.74)                                        

Net Cash used in Financing Activities 12,945.23                          5,149.62                                       

IV Net Increase/(decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (I+II+III) (1,368.70)                           1,540.37                                       

V Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period 1,540.52                            0.15                                              

VI Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the period (IV+V) 171.82                               1,540.52                                       

The accompanying notes 1 to 35 are an integral part of the financial statements

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our Report of even date.

For and on behalf on FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
LABS & Associates C2C Advanced Systems Limited
Chartered Accountants (formerly C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited)
FRN: 021131C CIN: L72200KA2018PLC110361

CA Rohit Gupta Lakshmi Chandra Murtaza Ali Soomar
Partner (Managing Director) (Director & CFO)
Membership No. 571943 DIN: 07436752 DIN: 05194435

Place: NOIDA
Date: 30th May 2025 Manjeet Singh

(Company Secretary)
PAN: DDSPS0240G

C2C Advanced Systems Limited
(Formerly known as C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited )

Ind AS Statement of Cash Flows
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C2C Advanced Systems Limited
(Formerly known as C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited )
Restated Ind AS Statement of Changes in Equity
(All Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Equity Share Capital
As at 31 March 2025

Particulars
Balance at the 
beginning of 

reporting period

Changes in Equity 
Share capital due to 
Prior Period Errors

 Balance at the 
beginning of current 

reporting period

Changes in Equity 
Share capital during 

the current year

Balance at the end 
of current 

reporting period
Equity Share Capital 1,225.76                     -                              1,225.76                             438.36                             1,664.12                  

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars
Balance at the 
beginning of 

reporting period

Changes in Equity 
Share capital due to 
Prior Period Errors

 Balance at the 
beginning of current 

reporting period

Changes in Equity 
Share capital during 

the current year

Balance at the end 
of current 

reporting period
Equity Share Capital 150.00                        -                              150.00                                1,075.76                          1,225.76                  

Other Equity

As at 31 March 2025

Security Premium Retained Earnings

Balance as at April 01, 2024 -                             5,090.14                      1,324.38                             5.45                                 6,419.97                  
Total Comprehensive Income for the year -                             -                              2,883.95                             -                                  2,883.95                  
Other Comprehensive Income for the year -                             -                              -                                     -                                  -                          
Premium received on issue of shares -                             9,468.58                      -                                     -                                  9,468.58                  
Adjustment of Capital Expenses (677.67)                       (677.67)                    
Balance as at March 31, 2025 -                             13,881.04                    4,208.33                             5.45                                 18,094.82                

As at 31 March 2024

Security Premium Retained Earnings

Balance as at April 01, 2023 -                             -                              96.69                                  5.45                                 102.14                     
Total Comprehensive Income for the year -                             -                              1,227.69                             -                                  1,227.69                  
Other Comprehensive Income for the year -                             -                              -                                     -                                  -                          
Premium received on issue of shares -                             5,540.14                      -                                     -                                  5,540.14                  
Bonus Shares issued (450.00)                       (450.00)                    
Balance as at March 31, 2024 -                             5,090.14                      1,324.38                             5.45                                 6,419.97                  

For and on behalf on FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
LABS & Associates C2C Advanced Systems Limited
Chartered Accountants (formerly C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited)
FRN: 021131C CIN: L72200KA2018PLC110361

CA Rohit Gupta Lakshmi Chandra Murtaza Ali Soomar
Partner (Managing Director) (Director & CFO)
Membership No. 571943 DIN: 07436752 DIN: 05194435

Place: NOIDA
Date: 30th May 2025 Manjeet Singh

(Company Secretary)
PAN: DDSPS0240G

Particulars

Equity Component 
of Compound 

Financial 
Instruments

Total
Reserves and Surplus

Other Comprehensive 
Income (OCI)

Particulars

Equity Component 
of Compound 

Financial 
Instruments

Reserves and Surplus
Other Comprehensive 

Income (OCI)
Total
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C2C Advanced Systems Limited
(Formerly known as C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited )
Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies
(All Amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1 Corporate Information

2 Basis of Preparation
(i)

(ii)

(iv) Current versus Non-current classification

An asset is treated as current when it is:
-

-
-

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is treated as current when it is:
-
-
-

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

(v) Significant accounting, judgments, estimates and assumptions

The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:
- Estimation of useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset
- Estimation of defined benefit obligation
- Impairment of financial assets & non-financial assets
- Measurement of Right-of-Use (ROU) Asset and Liabilities

(vi) Functional currency and presentation currency

(vii) Historical Cost Convention

C2C Advanced Systems Limited ("the company") was incorporated as a private limited company on 21st February, 2018 under the provisions of Companies 
Act, 2013 having its registered office at Neil Rao Towers, 4th Floor, Central Wing 117-118, Road No. 3, EPIP Phase-1, Whitefield, Bangalore. The Company is 
engaged in providing IT enabled services and supplying related equipment. The Company is a public limited company & is listed on NSE Emerge Platform.

This Financial statement contains the Ind AS Statement of Assets and Liabilities of the Company as at March 31, 2025, September 30, 2024, March 31, 2024, 
and the Ind AS Statement of Profit and Loss, Ind AS Statement of Changes in Equity and Ind AS Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended March 31, 
2025, September 30, 2024 and March 31, 2024, (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Ind AS Financial Information”). The Financial information of overseas 
branches of the company have been included as per USD Exchange rate prevailing on 31st March 2025 i.e. Rs. 85.58.

The Ind AS Financial Information of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent amendments thereof. These Restated Ind AS Financial Information have been 
prepared to comply in all material respects with the requirements of Part I of Chapter III to the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (“the SEBI regulations”) and the Guidance note on Reports in 
company prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), as amended from time to time.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle or expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting 
period
Held primarily for the purpose of trading
Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle or due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has 
identified period of twelve months as its operating cycle.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the 
reporting period. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of 
future events that may have financial impact on the company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Items included in the Financial Statements of the Company are measured and presented using the currency of the primary economic environment in which 
the Company operates (“Functional Currency”). Indian Rupee is the functional Currency of the Company.

Amount earned in Foreign Currency during the period: FY 2024-25 - 31,12,96,632/-; FY 2023-24 - Rs. 5,54,22,350/- ; 
Amount Spent in Foreign Currency during the period: FY 2024-25 - 11,56,93,556/-; FY 2023-24 - Rs. 3,02,36,923/-; 

The Financial Statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain assets and liabilities as stated in the 
respective policies, which have been measured at fair value.
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(viii) Measurement of Fair Values

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs).

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(i) Revenue Recognition

(ii)

Computers                :    3 Years
Office Equipment      :    5 Years
Vehicles                     :    6 Years
Furniture & Fixtures :    10 Years
Electrical Fixtures      :   10 Years

(iii) Intangible Assets

A few of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and 
liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair 
value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same 
level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. 

Other revenue recognition
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the interest rate applicable using Effective Interest 
Rate Method.

Property, Plant & Equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ part have a cost which is significant to the 
total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset.
Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from financial statements, either on disposal or when retired from active use. Losses arising in case of 
retirement of property, plant and equipment and gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognized in statement of 
profit and loss in the year of occurrence.

Depreciation is provided on the Written Down Value Method (WDV). The useful life as specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 has been 
considered for depreciation computation. If the management’s estimate of the useful life of a fixed asset at the time of acquisition of the fixed asset or of the 
remaining useful life on a subsequent review is shorter/longer than that envisaged in the aforesaid schedule, depreciation is provided at higher/lower rate 
based on the management’s estimate of the useful life/remaining useful life. Depreciation is charged on prorata basis for assets purchased/sold during the 
year. Pursuant to this policy, fixed assets aredepreciated over the useful life as provided below:

Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost as of the date of acquisition, as applicable, less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment, if 
any.

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow to the company and the cost 
of the asset can be measured reliably. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related 
expenditure is reflected in profit and loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting 
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to 
modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible 
asset may be impaired. Useful life of intangible asset is considered as 10 years.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 
of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.
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(iv)

(v) Borrowing Cost

(vi) Foreign Currency Translation

(vii) Employee Benefits

(a) Defined contribution plan

(b) Defined benefit plan

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual 
impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s 
or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does 
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds 
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are 
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses of operations are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

At each reporting date if there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased, the Company estimates the 
asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss only to the extent of lower of 
its recoverable amount or carrying amount net of depreciation considering no impairment loss recognized in prior years only if there has been a change in 
the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.

The Company capitalizes borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying asset as a part of the cost of the asset. 
The Company recognizes other borrowing costs as an expense in the period in which it incurs them. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

To the extent the Company borrows generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, amount of borrowing cost eligible for 
capitalization is computed by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditure incurred. The capitalization rate is determined based on the weighted average 
of borrowing costs, other than borrowings made specifically towards purchase of a qualifying asset.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the company at their respective functional currency spot rates, at the date the transaction first 
qualifies for recognition.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. 
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they
arise.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial 
transactions.

Short term employee benefits obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related services provided. A liability is recognized 
for the amount expected to be paid under short term employee benefits if the company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a 
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to 
such schemes. The Company recognizes contribution payable to such schemes as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.

The Company’s obligation on account of gratuity is determined based on actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions 
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. 
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All 
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss -Service costs 
comprising current service costs and Net interest expense or income.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing 
benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. Liability for gratuity as at the year-end is provided on the basis 
of actuarial valuation.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined 
benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in 
which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
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(viii) Income Taxes
a) Current Income Tax

b)

(ix) Leases

(x) Provisions and Contingencies

(xi) Cash & Cash Equivalents

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable 
in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the 
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts, and it is intended to 
realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 
reporting purposes at the reporting date.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and 
are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxableprofits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, 
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the 
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

The Company, being a lessee, assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. Company recognizes Right of Use Asset and lease 
liability only when the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at present value of cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease 
payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets, for which the entity is reasonably certain to exercise the right to purchase, are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present 
value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the 
incremental borrowing rates.

For the short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
lease.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of theobligation. The 
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized 
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economicbenefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term deposits with an original maturity of three months or 
less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short- term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts, if any, as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.
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(xii) Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs 
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three broad categories:
- Financial assets at amortized cost
- Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI)
- Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Financial Assets at amortized cost

A Financial asset is measured at amortized cost (net of any write down for impairment) the asset is held to collect the contractual cash flows (rather than to 
sell the instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realize its fair value changes) and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in 
the profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognizedstatement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other 
receivables.

Financial asset at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI)

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through OCI unless the asset is designated at fair value through profit and 
loss under fair value option.

- The financial asset is held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell.
- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding.

Instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are 
recognized in OCI. However, the Company recognizes interest income and impairment losses & reversals in the Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the 
asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI 
Financial asset is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for company’s financial instruments. Any instruments which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost 
or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

All investments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Profit and Loss.

In addition, the company may elect to designate an instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such 
election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Derecognition

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without 
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass- through’ arrangement; It evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
- Based on above evaluation, either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company 
continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated 
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a bases that reflect the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset 
and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial 
assets which are not fair value through profit & loss and equity instruments recognized in OCI.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to Lifetime ECL. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses that result from 
all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is the maximum 
contractual period over which the company is exposed to credit risk.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase 
in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide forimpairment loss. However, if 
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a 
portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity 
expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider all contractual 
terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call andsimilar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in 
rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term 
of the financial instrument.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This 
amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortized cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables:
ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying 
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

b) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss or at amortized cost, as appropriate. All 
financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s 
financial liabilities include trade payables, lease obligations, and other payables.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at amortized cost
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings and other payables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. 
Gains and losses are recognized in profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is 
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange 
or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

c) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset 
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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(xiii) Earning Per Share

(xiv) Cash Flow Statement

(xv) Rounding of Amount

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year/period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period adjusted for bonus elements, if any, issued during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year/period attributable to equity shareholders after taking into 
account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares and the weighted average number of 
additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Cash flow statement is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in Ind AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’. Cash flows are reported using 
the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or 
future cash receipts or payments. Cash flow for the year is classified by operating, investing and financing activities.

Amount disclosed in the financial statement and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs as per the requirements of schedule III, unless otherwise 
stated.
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C2C Advanced Systems Limited

(Formerly known as C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited )

Notes to Ind AS Financial Statement

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. 1-Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets
i) Property, Plant & Equipment

TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

AS ON ADDITIONS (DELETIONS) AS ON UPTO DURING THE ADJUSTMENT AS ON AS ON AS ON 
01.04.2024 31.03.2025 01.04.2024 PERIOD 31.03.2025 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Vehicles 92.14                 16.00                 -                     108.14               81.40                 4.62                   -                     86.02                 22.12                 10.74                   

Computers & Peripherals 38.79                 34.25                 -                     73.04                 28.93                 13.98                 -                     42.91                 30.13                 9.86                     

Furnitures & Fixtures 8.43                   225.14               -                     233.57               6.55                   12.57                 -                     19.13                 214.45               1.88                     

Office Equipment 4.55                   5.42                   -                     9.97                   4.31                   0.17                   -                     4.49                   5.49                   0.24                     

Electrical Fixtures 1.07                   21.98                 -                     23.05                 0.28                   0.46                   -                     0.74                   22.31                 0.79                     

Total 135.32               302.79               -                     447.78               121.48               31.80                 -                     153.28               294.50               23.51                   
Previous Years March 2024 135.32               9.67                   -                     144.99               109.34               12.14                 -                     121.48               23.51                 25.98                   

ii) Intangible Assets

TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL
AS ON ADDITIONS (DELETIONS) AS ON UPTO DURING THE ADJUSTMENT AS ON AS ON AS ON 

01.04.2024 31.03.2025 01.04.2024 PERIOD 31.03.2025 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Softwares 311.65               0.77                   -                     312.42               62.32                 31.42                 -                     93.74                 218.68               249.32                 
Total 311.65               0.77                   -                     312.42               62.32                 31.42                 -                     93.74                 218.68               249.32                 

Previous Years March 2024 311.65               -                     -                     311.65               31.16                 31.16                 -                     62.32                 249.32               280.48                 

iii) Intangible Assets Under Development

TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL
AS ON ADDITIONS (DELETIONS) AS ON UPTO DURING THE ADJUSTMENT AS ON AS ON AS ON 

01.04.2024 31.03.2025 01.04.2024 PERIOD 31.03.2025 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Softwares Development -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                       
Total -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                       

Previous Years March 2024 -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                       

iv) Right to Use Assets

TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL
AS ON ADDITIONS (DELETIONS) AS ON UPTO DURING THE ADJUSTMENT AS ON AS ON AS ON 

01.04.2024 31.03.2025 01.04.2024 PERIOD 31.03.2025 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Lease Assets 262.27               857.47               134.90               984.83               120.96               109.50               122.00               108.46               876.37               141.31                 
Total 262.27               857.47               134.90               984.83               120.96               109.50               122.00               108.46               876.37               141.31                 

Previous Years March 2024 122.00               140.27               -                     262.27               46.06                 74.90                 -                     120.96               141.31               75.94                   

v) Capital Work-in-Progress

TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL
AS ON ADDITIONS (DELETIONS) AS ON UPTO DURING THE ADJUSTMENT AS ON AS ON AS ON 

01.04.2024 31.03.2025 01.04.2024 PERIOD 31.03.2025 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Experian Centre -                     2,556.74             -                     2,556.74             -                     -                     -                     -                     2,556.74             -                       
Total -                     2,556.74             -                     2,556.74             -                     -                     -                     -                     2,556.74             -                       

Previous Years March 2024 -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                       

For and on behalf on FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 

LABS & Associates C2C Advanced Systems Limited

Chartered Accountants (formerly C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited)

FRN: 021131C CIN: L72200KA2018PLC110361

CA Rohit Gupta Lakshmi Chandra Murtaza Ali Soomar

Partner (Director) (Director)

Membership No. 571943 DIN: 07436752 DIN: 05194435

Place: NOIDA

Date: 30th May 2025 Manjeet Singh

(Company Secretary)

PAN: DDSPS0240G

NAME OF ASSETS

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION    N E T  B L O C K

GROSS BLOCK

NAME OF ASSETS

   N E T  B L O C K

   N E T  B L O C KDEPRECIATION

   N E T  B L O C K

DEPRECIATION

NAME OF ASSETS

GROSS BLOCK

NAME OF ASSETS

AMORTIZATION    N E T  B L O C K

NAME OF ASSETS

DEPRECIATION

GROSS BLOCK

GROSS BLOCK
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C2C Advanced Systems Limited

(Formerly known as C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited )

Notes to Ind AS Financial Statement

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. 2(a) - Deferred Tax Asset

Particulars
 As at 

Mar 31, 2025 
 As at 

Mar 31, 2024 
Timing Difference of PPE                       (742.40)                              8.06 
Timing Difference of Employee Benefit Expenses                           79.73                                  -   
Total                       (662.67)                              8.06 
Prevailing Income Tax Rate 25.17% 25.17%
Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability)                       (166.79)                              2.03 
Less: Deferred Tax Asset at the beginning of the period                             2.03                              4.18 
Net Income/(Expenses) for the period                       (168.82)                             (2.15)

Total (166.79)                      2.03                             

Note No. 2(b) - Calculation of Income Tax

Particulars
 for the year ended 

Mar 31, 2025 
 for the year ended 

Mar 31, 2024 

Profit Before Tax                      4,112.17                       1,659.60 
Adjustments on Account of Tax Benefits                       (201.77)                           (51.86)
Adjustments on Account of Tax Expenses                         291.46                            52.71 
Expected Taxable Income                      4,201.86                       1,660.45 
Prevailing Tax Rate 25.17% 25.17%

Total 1,057.61                    417.94                         

For and on behalf on FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
LABS & Associates C2C Advanced Systems Limited
Chartered Accountants (formerly C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited)
FRN: 021131C CIN: L72200KA2018PLC110361

CA Rohit Gupta Lakshmi Chandra Murtaza Ali Soomar
Partner (Managing Director) (Director & CFO)
Membership No. 571943 DIN: 07436752 DIN: 05194435

Place: NOIDA Manjeet Singh
Date: 30th May 2025 (Company Secretary)

PAN: DDSPS0240G
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C2C Advanced Systems Limited

(Formerly known as C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited )

Notes to Ind AS Financial Statement

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. 3 -Other Non-Current Assets

Particulars As at 31 Mar, 2025 As at 31 Mar, 2024 As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Security Deposit - Others 0.95                                    0.95                                    0.05                                    0.05                                    
Security Deposit - Lease Assets 73.28                                  38.60                                  24.28                                  16.22                                  
Advances to Vendors 50.97                                  50.97                                  50.97                                  50.97                                  
Performance Bank Guarantee 33.41                                  59.80                                  -                                      2.40                                    

Total 158.61                                150.32                                75.30                                  69.64                                  

Note No. 4 -Inventories

Particulars As at 31 Mar, 2025 As at 31 Mar, 2024 As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Finished Goods 5,882.60                             655.03                                130.37                                4.00                                    

Total 5,882.60                             655.03                                130.37                                4.00                                    

Note No. 5 -Trade Recievable

Particulars As at 31 Mar, 2025 As at 31 Mar, 2024 As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Trade Receivable Considered Good - Secured                                         -                                           -                                           -                                           -   
Trade Receivable Considered Good - Unsecured                          10,995.87                            4,269.51                               899.03                               181.58 

Total 10,995.87                           4,269.51                             899.03                                181.58                                
* Trade receivable as on 31st March 2025 includes trade receivable of foreign branches of the company amounting to INR 203.99 Lakhs

5.1 - Ageing Schedule :
As at 31 Mar 2025

Total

Not Due/Less than 6 
Months

6 Months - 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good                            6,954.87                        2,492.01 1,362.39                       -                               186.60                                10,995.87        
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Which have 
significant increase in credit risk                                  -                                    -   -                                      -                                      -                                      -                   

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired                                  -                                    -   -                                      -                                      -                                      -                   
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good                                  -                                    -   -                                      -                                      -                                      -                   
(v) Disputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant 
increase in credit risk                                  -                                    -   -                                      -                                      -                                      -                   

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired                                  -                                    -   -                                      -                                      -                                      -                   
(vii) Unbilled Dues (Not Due)                                  -                                    -   -                                      -                                      -                                      -                   

Total                        6,954.87                        2,492.01                        1,362.39                                  -                             186.60       10,995.87 

As at 31 March 2024
Total

Not Due/Less than 6 
Months

6 Months - 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good                            2,751.15                           948.25 437.59                          0.06                             132.46                                4,269.51          
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Which have 
significant increase in credit risk                                  -                                    -   -                                      -                                      -                                      -                   

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired                                  -                                    -   -                                      -                                      -                                      -                   
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good                                  -                                    -   -                                      -                                      -                                      -                   
(v) Disputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant 
increase in credit risk                                  -                                    -   -                                      -                                      -                                      -                   

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired                                  -                                    -   -                                      -                                      -                                      -                   
(vii) Unbilled Dues (Not Due)                                  -                                    -   -                                      -                                      -                                      -                   

Total                        2,751.15                           948.25                           437.59                               0.06                           132.46        4,269.51 

Note No. 6 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at 31 Mar, 2025 As at 31 Mar, 2024 As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Balances with Banks 158.41                                1,529.25                             0.09                                    3.53                                    
Cash on Hand 13.41                                  11.27                                  0.06                                    0.18                                    

Total 171.82                                1,540.52                             0.15                                    3.71                                    

Note No. 7 - Other Current Financial Assets

As at 31 Mar, 2025 As at 31 Mar, 2024 As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Loans and Advances:
Advance to Related Parties - 
    C2C Innovations Pvt. Ltd. -                                      65.06                                  64.50                                  64.50                                  
    Realtime Techsolutions Pvt. Ltd. 713.92                                560.82                                127.90                                139.66                                
    KTI Intelligent Systems Pvt. Ltd. 118.83                                118.83                                -                                      -                                      
    PVR Multimedia Pvt. Ltd. -                                      -                                      
Accrued Interest 18.48                                  0.38                                    -                                      -                                      
Fixed Deposits with Banks & Financial Institutions 1,527.35                             -                                      
Advance to Staff/Workers 2.15                                    2.21                                    0.15                                    -                                      

Total 2,380.72                             747.29                                192.55                                204.16                                

Note No. 8 - Other Current Assets

As at 31 Mar, 2025 As at 31 Mar, 2024 As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Balances With Revenue Authorities (Advance Income Tax, GST etc) 2,101.71                             266.66                                33.46                                  8.34                                    
Advance to Suppliers 559.83                                531.62                                128.20                                3.57                                    
Prepaid Expenses 2.20                                    2.45                                    1.29                                    -                                      
Prepaid Rent - Lease Asset 45.18                                  3.26                                    2.63                                    3.28                                    
Advance for Expenses -                                      0.68                                    0.22                                    -                                      

Total 2,708.92                             804.67                                165.80                                15.19                                  

For and on behalf on FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
LABS & Associates C2C Advanced Systems Limited
Chartered Accountants (formerly C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited)

FRN: 021131C CIN: L72200KA2018PLC110361

Lakshmi Chandra Murtaza Ali Soomar
CA Rohit Gupta (Director) (Director)
Partner DIN: 07436752 DIN: 05194435
Membership No. 571943

Place: NOIDA Manjeet Singh
Date: 30th May 2025 (Company Secretary)

PAN: DDSPS0240G

Particulars

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment

Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment

Particulars

Particulars
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C2C Advanced Systems Limited

(Formerly known as C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited )

Notes to Ind AS Financial Statement

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. 9 - Share Capital
A. Details of Authorised, issued and paid up share capital

Number Amount (in INR) Number Amount (in INR) Number Amount (in INR)

Authorised
Equity Shares 1,70,00,000 17,00,00,000            1,70,00,000           17,00,00,000        1,70,00,000            17,00,00,000              

Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid up
Equity Shares 1,66,41,168 16,64,11,680            1,22,57,568           12,25,75,680        1,22,57,568            12,25,75,680              

Par value per equity shares 1                  10                             1                            10                         1                             10                               

Subscribed but not fully Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid - - - - - -

Total 1,66,41,168 16,64,11,680            1,22,57,568           12,25,75,680        1,22,57,568            12,25,75,680              

B. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Number Amount (in INR) Number Amount (in INR) Number Amount (in INR)

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the period   1,22,57,568              12,25,75,680             1,22,57,568          12,25,75,680                 15,00,000                  1,50,00,000 

Shares Issued during the period      43,83,600                4,38,36,000                            -                             -                1,07,57,568                10,75,75,680 

Shares bought back during the period

Any other movement (please specify)

Shares outstanding at the end of the period 1,66,41,168 16,64,11,680            1,22,57,568           12,25,75,680        1,22,57,568            12,25,75,680              

C. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

No. of 
Shares held

% of Holding No. of Shares 
held

% of Holding No. of Shares 
held

% of Holding 

PVR Multimedia Systems Pvt. Ltd. 36,41,944  21.89% 36,41,944          29.71% 36,41,944           29.71%
V2K Hospitality Pvt. Ltd. 4,81,063    2.89% 10,85,744          8.86% 10,85,744           8.86%
C2C Innovations Pvt. Ltd. 21,00,000  12.62% 21,00,000          17.13% 42,00,000           34.26%

Total 62,23,007    37.40% 68,27,688              55.70% 89,27,688               72.83%

D. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the ordinary shares
The ordinary shares of the company having par value of Rs. 10 each per share rank pari passu  in all respect including voting rights and entitlement to dividend. 

E. Details of Shares held by promoters

As at 31st March 2025

No. of 
Shares held

% of Holding No. of Shares 
held

% of Holding 

PVR Multimedia Systems Pvt. Ltd. 36,41,944  29.71% 36,41,944          29.71% - -

C2C Innovations Pvt. Ltd. 21,00,000  17.13% 42,00,000          34.26% -17.13% Disposal of shares
Total 57,41,944    46.84% 78,41,944              63.98% -17.13%

As at 30th September 2024

No. of 
Shares held

% of Holding No. of Shares 
held

% of Holding 

PVR Multimedia Systems Pvt. Ltd. 36,41,944  29.71% 36,41,944          29.71% - -

C2C Innovations Pvt. Ltd. 21,00,000  17.13% 42,00,000          34.26% -17.13% Disposal of shares
Total 57,41,944    46.84% 78,41,944              63.98% -17.13%

As at 31st March 2024

No. of 
Shares held

% of Holding No. of Shares 
held

% of Holding 

PVR Multimedia Systems Pvt. Ltd. 36,41,944  29.71% -                    0.00%
29.71%

Subscription to fresh 
issue by the 
company

C2C Innovations Pvt. Ltd. 42,00,000  34.26% 10,50,000          100.00% -65.74%

Fresh issue made by 
the company but the 
promoter didn't 
subscribe any share.

Total 78,41,944    63.98% 10,50,000              100.00% -36.02%

 As at 31 Mar, 2025 

Note:-1. The company has allotted 1,07,57,568 shares during the period ended on 31st March 2024, out of which 
a) 22,37,294 right shares were issued at premium of Rs. 7 per share, 
b) 12,95,362 shares were issued at a premium of Rs. 126 per share, 
c) 2,80,000 shares were issued at a premium of Rs. 30 per share,
d) 24,44,912 shares were issued at a premium of Rs. 150 per share
e) 45,00,000 shares were issued as bonus shares in the ratio of 3:1.
2. Company has issued 43,83,600 shares through Initial Public Offer in December 2024.
3. There are no shares issued under ESOP ot pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash during the priod of 5 years immediately preceeding 
the balancesheet date.

 Reason of Change 

 Name of the Promoter 
 As at 31 Mar, 2025  As at 31 Mar, 2024  % change during 

the period 
 Reason of Change 

 % change during 
the period 

 Name of the Promoter 

Name of Shareholders
 As at 31 Mar, 2024 

Particulars

 Name of the Promoter 
 As at 31 Mar, 2024  As at 31 March 2023 

 % change during 
the period 

 Reason of Change 
 As at 30 Sept, 2024  As at 31 Mar, 2024 

 As at 30 Sept, 2024 

 As at 30 Sept, 2024 

Share Capital

 As at 31 Mar, 2024 

 As at 30 Sept, 2024 

 As at 31 Mar, 2024 

Equity Shares
 As at 31 Mar, 2025 

Equity Shares
 As at 31 Mar, 2025 
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C2C Advanced Systems Limited

(Formerly known as C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited )

Notes to Ind AS Financial Statement

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. 10 - Other Equity

As at 31 Mar, 2025 As at 31 Mar, 2024 As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

a). Securities Premium Reserve

Opening Balance 5,090.14                                      -                                               -                                                    -                                            
Addition during the year 9,468.58                                      5,540.14                                      -                                                    

-                                               (450.00)                                        -                                            
(677.67)                                        -                                               

13,881.04                                    5,090.14                                      -                                                    -                                            

1,324.38                                      96.69                                           (190.83)                                             47.38                                         

2,883.95                                      1,227.69                                      288.06                                               (238.21)                                     
Closing Balance 4,208.33                                      1,324.38                                      97.23                                                 (190.83)                                     

5.45                                             5.45                                             4.24                                                   -                                            
-                                               -                                               1.21                                                   4.24                                           

Closing Balance 5.45                                             5.45                                             5.45                                                   4.24                                           

Total 18,094.82                                    6,419.97                                      102.68                                               (186.58)                                     

Note No. 11 - Long Term Borrowings

As at 31 Mar, 2025 As at 31 Mar, 2024 As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Total                                                   -                                                     -                                                          -                                              9.61 

Note No. 12 - Long Term Provisions

As at 31 Mar, 2025 As at 31 Mar, 2024 As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Provision for Gratuity 63.25                                           26.40                                           #REF! 12.88                                         

Total 63.25                                           26.40                                           #REF! 12.88                                         

Note No. 13 - Short Term Borrowings

As at 31 Mar, 2025 As at 31 Mar, 2024 As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Loan from Related Parties                                        3,761.02                                                   -                                                  941.74                                        480.66 
Loan from Others                                                   -                                                     -                                                      3.00                                          64.50 

Total 3,761.02                                      -                                               944.74                                               545.16                                       

Note No. 14 - Lease Liability

As at 31 Mar, 2025 As at 31 Mar, 2024 As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Total Lease Liability                                           870.63                                           111.70                                                  51.07                                          43.52 
Less: Non-Current Portion of Lease Liability                                         (817.51)                                           (81.00)                                                 (20.57)                                         (12.60)

Total - Current Lease Liability 53.12                                           30.70                                           30.50                                                 30.92                                         

Changes in lease liabilities are as follows:
As at 31 Mar, 2025 As at 31 Mar, 2024

Opening Balance                                           111.70                                             51.07 
Addition of new lease during the year                                           857.47                                           140.27 
Interest Accrued                                             45.05                                               7.13 
Repayment of Lease Liability during the year                                         (130.69)                                           (86.77)
Other Non-Cash Movement                                           (12.91)                                                   -   

Total Lease Liability at the end of the period 870.63                                         111.70                                         

Note  No. 15 - Trade Payables

As at 31 Mar, 2025 As at 31 Mar, 2024 As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Trade Payables-MSME 16.44                                           -                                               -                                                    -                                            
Trade Payables-Other 256.64                                         217.79                                         377.37                                               291.88                                       

Total 273.08                                         217.79                                         377.37                                               291.88                                       

15.1 - Ageing Schedule :

As at 31 March 2025
Total

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Micro and Small Enterprises                                     16.44 -                                               -                                               -                                                    16.44                                         
Others                                   178.08 -                                               78.56                                           -                                                    256.64                                       
Disputed Dues - Micro and Small Enterprises                                          -   -                                               -                                               -                                                    -                                            
Disputed Dues - Others                                          -   -                                               -                                               -                                                    -                                            
Unbilled Dues                                          -   -                                               -                                               -                                                    -                                            

Total                                   194.52                                          -                                       78.56                                              -                                   273.08 

As at 31 March 2024
Total

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Micro and Small Enterprises                                          -   -                                               -                                               -                                                    -                                            
Others                                   139.09 78.70                                           -                                               -                                                    217.79                                       
Disputed Dues - Micro and Small Enterprises                                          -   -                                               -                                               -                                                    -                                            
Disputed Dues - Others                                          -   -                                               -                                               -                                                    -                                            
Unbilled Dues                                          -   -                                               -                                               -                                                    -                                            

Total                                   139.09                                     78.70                                          -                                                -                                   217.79 

Note No. 16 - Other Financial Liabilities

As at 31 Mar, 2025 As at 31 Mar, 2024 As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Statutory Dues Payable 112.35                                         61.48                                           103.72                                               72.98                                         
Expenses Payable 153.29                                         99.08                                           91.90                                                 48.85                                         
Advance From Customers -                                               2.11                                             0.35                                                   1.44                                           

Total 265.63                                         162.67                                         195.98                                               123.26                                       

Note No. 17 - Provisions

As at 31 Mar, 2025 As at 31 Mar, 2024 As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Provision for Gratuity 16.48                                           1.33                                             #REF! 0.05                                           
Provision for CSR 11.40                                           -                                               
Provision for Current Tax (Net) 1,057.61                                      417.90                                         -                                                    -                                            

Total 1,085.49                                      419.23                                         #REF! 0.05                                           

For and on behalf on FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
LABS & Associates C2C Advanced Systems Limited

Chartered Accountants (formerly C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited)

FRN: 021131C CIN: L72200KA2018PLC110361

CA Rohit Gupta Lakshmi Chandra Murtaza Ali Soomar

Partner (Director) (Director)
Membership No. 571943 DIN: 07436752 DIN: 05194435

Place: NOIDA Manjeet Singh
Date: 30th May 2025 (Company Secretary)

PAN: DDSPS0240G

Particulars

Particulars

Note:- 1. Company had taken Interst fee loans from directors, members of group companies and their relatives. These loans were repayable on demand. 
Company has repaid/adjusted the outstanding loans during FY 2023-24. 
Further company had also taken loan from group companies during the FY 2023-24 which carries interest at 9% per annum. However such loan has been 
repaid/adjusted during the year along with interest.
In FY 2024-25, Company has taken loan from group companies. These loans are interest free and repayable on demand.

Particulars

Closing Balance
(-) Expenses incurred on Public Issue
(-) Bonus Shares issued during the period

b). Surplus i.e. balance in Statement of Profit and Loss account

(+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) for the current period

Opening balance

Opening balance
c). Other Comprehensive Income

(+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) for the current period

Particulars

Unsecured Loans

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment

Particulars

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment

Particulars
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C2C Advanced Systems Limited

(Formerly known as C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited )

Notes to Ind AS Financial Statement

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. 18 - Revenue from Operations

for the year ended 
Mar 31, 2025

for the year ended 
Mar 31, 2024

Sales- Domestic                               777.73                              1,016.26 
Sales- Export                           10,733.39                              3,089.62 

11,511.11                                4,105.89                             
*Export sales for the year ended 31st March 2025, includes revenue generated by Foreign branches of the company amounting to INR  234.07 Lakhs.

Note No. 19 - Other Income

for the year ended 
Mar 31, 2025

for the year ended 
Mar 31, 2024

Duty Drawback                                               -                                       0.00 
Other Miscellaneous Income                                               -                                       0.07 
Forex Fluctuation Gain                                       153.52                                   18.47 
Interest Income - Fixed Deposits                                         78.16                                     2.64 
Interest Income - Financial Asset                                           3.10                                     2.75 

234.78                                     23.93                                  

Note No. 20 - Cost of Equipment & Software Licences

for the year ended 
Mar 31, 2025

for the year ended 
Mar 31, 2024

Purchase during the year
Purchase of Equipments                                    9,716.26                                 904.36 
Purchase of Services                                       600.35                                 584.59 
Spares                                               -                                           -   

10,316.61                                1,488.96                             
*purchase of goods or the year ended 31st March 2025, includes COGS of Foreign branches of the company amounting to INR 153.23 Lakhs.

Note No. 21 - Changes in inventories of Finished & Semi-Finished Goods

for the year ended 
Mar 31, 2025

for the year ended 
Mar 31, 2024

Finished Goods 655.03                                     130.37                                
Semi-Finished Goods -                                           -                                     

Sub Total (a) 655.03                                     130.37                                

Finished Goods                                    5,882.60                                 655.03 
Semi-Finished Goods                                               -                                           -   

Sub Total (b) 5,882.60                                  655.03                                

(5,227.58)                                 (524.66)                              

Note No. 22 - Employee benefits Expenses

for the year ended 
Mar 31, 2025

for the year ended 
Mar 31, 2024

Salaries, Wages & Bonus                                    1,108.39                                 856.36 

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds:
Employees Provident Fund                                         40.96                                   57.51 
Provision for Gratuity                                         52.00                                     8.84 
Staff Welfare Expenses                                         16.59                                     8.45 

1,217.94                                  931.16                                

Note No. 23 - Finance Cost
for the year ended 

Mar 31, 2025
for the year ended 

Mar 31, 2024
Interest on Lease Obligation                                         45.05                                     7.13 
Interest on Taxes 46.73                                       0.50                                    
Interest on Loan from Related Parties -                                           70.70                                  
Interest on Car Loan -                                                                               0.33 

91.79                                       78.66                                  

Particulars

Total

Total

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

a) Opening Inventory

Changes in inventories of Finished Goods & Stock in Trade

b) Less: Closing Inventory

Particulars

Total

Total

Total

Particulars
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Note No. 24 - Other Expenses

for the year ended 
Mar 31, 2025

for the year ended 
Mar 31, 2024

Travelling Expenses 239.75                                                                       47.14 
Professional and consultancy fees 314.43                                     176.45                                
Prepaid Rent Written Off                                           4.00                                     2.70 
Rent Expenses                                         38.40                                         -   
Electricity Expenses 34.05                                                                         12.53 
Forex Fluctuation Loss -                                                                                   -   
Bank Charges 2.82                                                                             3.53 
Commission & Brokerage 1.65                                                                                 -   
Repair & Maintenance 112.05                                                                       48.74 
Audit Fee (Refer Note No. 24.1) 4.19                                         3.00                                    
Freight 41.12                                                                           0.17 
Rates & Taxes 4.31                                                                           10.94 
Telephone Expenses 5.52                                         1.73                                    
Provision for CSR 11.40                                       -                                     
Insurance Charges 2.20                                                                             0.74 
Advertisement Expenses 1.75                                                                                 -   
Business Promotion Expenses 135.16                                                                         1.96 
Fee & Subscription 31.34                                                                           4.04 
Printing & Stationery 1.24                                                                             0.78 
IPO Advisory Expenses -                                                                             48.04 
Administration expenses of USA Branch 43.18                                                                               -   
Other Expenses 33.67                                                                         15.42 

Total 1,062.24                                  377.90                                

Note No. 24.1 - Payment to Auditors
for the year ended 

Mar 31, 2025
for the year ended 

Mar 31, 2024
Statutory Audit Fee 2.50                                         2.00                                    
Tax Audit Fee 1.25                                         1.00                                    
Certification Fee 0.26                                         -                                     
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.18                                         -                                     

Total 4.19                                         3.00                                    
*for the period ended 30 September 2024, provision for audit fee is made fo half year.

For and on behalf on FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
LABS & Associates C2C Advanced Systems Limited
Chartered Accountants (formerly C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited)

FRN: 021131C CIN: L72200KA2018PLC110361

CA Rohit Gupta Lakshmi Chandra Murtaza Ali Soomar

Partner (Director) (Director)
Membership No. 571943 DIN: 07436752 DIN: 05194435

Place: NOIDA
Date: 30th May 2025 Manjeet Singh

(Company Secretary)
PAN: DDSPS0240G

Particulars

Particulars
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C2C Advanced Systems Limited
(Formerly known as C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited )
Notes to Ind AS Financial Statement
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. 25 - Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in calculation of EPS are as follows:

Mar 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit for the period, attributable to the owners of the company 2,883.95                   1,227.69                        
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares post bonus issue of shares 1,36,86,742              77,43,651                      
Basic EPS (in INR) 21.07                        15.85                            
Diluted EPS (in INR) 21.07                        15.85                            

Note No. 26 - Contingent Liabilities
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts :

Mar 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Bank Guarantees
(against service contracts)

33.41                        59.80                            

Income Tax Demand
(A.Y. 2023-24)

3.08                          -                                

Total 33.41                        59.80                            

There is no outstanding capital/other commitments as at the end of all reported period/years.

Note No. 27 - Corporate Social Responsibility

Mar 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Amount required to be spend 11.40                        -                                
Less: Amount Spent -                           -                                
Difference 11.40                        -                                

For and on behalf on FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
LABS & Associates C2C Advanced Systems Limited
Chartered Accountants (formerly C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited)
FRN: 021131C CIN: L72200KA2018PLC110361

CA Rohit Gupta Lakshmi Chandra Murtaza Ali Soomar
Partner (Managing Director) (Director & CFO)
Membership No. 571943 DIN: 07436752 DIN: 05194435

Place: NOIDA
Date: 30th May 2025 Manjeet Singh

(Company Secretary)
PAN: DDSPS0240G

Particulars
For the year/period ended on

Particulars
For the period ended on

Company has entered into an understanding for undertaking CSR Activities with an entity however the project has not started 
yet.

Nature of Liability
As at

The Company has outstanding income tax demand u/s 143(1)(a) for A.Y. 2023-24 and is seeking legal opnion on the 

As per Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, the following is the detail of Corporate Social Responisibility :
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C2C Advanced Systems Limited
(Formerly known as C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited )
Notes to Ind AS Financial Statement
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. 28 - Employee Benefit

Defined Contribution Plan

Mar 31, 2025 Sept 30, 2024 March 31, 2024
Provident Fund Scheme 40.96                   18.84                   57.51                   

Defined Benefit Plan

Summary of Membership Data of Gratuity

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
133 54

41.82                   17.93                   
2.66                     2.66                     

32.56                   35.10                   
25.44                   22.90                   
13.28                   12.50                   

Actuarial Assumption of Gratuity

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
7.04                     7.36                     
6.00                     6.00                     

Movement in Benefit Obligations
A reconciliation of the benefit obligation during the inter-valuation period is given below:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

27,72,731            18,88,320            
15,75,960            7,46,564              
34,21,911            -                      

2,02,409              1,37,847              

-                      

-                      
-                      

79,73,012            27,72,731            

for the year/period ended on

for the year/period ended on

(Amount in INR)

Current Service Cost

Discount rate (a)
Salary Escalation Rate (b)

Past Service Cost

Average remaining working life (years)

Closing of Defined Benefit Obligation
Benefits Paid

Particulars

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arsing from change in
financial assumption

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arsing on account of 
experience changes

Opening of Defined Benefit Obligation

During the period ended Sept 30, 2024, March 31, 2024 the Company contributed the following amounts to defined 
contribution plans:

As per the payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has 
completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days’ salary (last drawn salary) for each 
completed year of service. The company has provides an amount towards Gratuity at the end of every year on the 
basis of Acturial Valuation Report.

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of profit and 
Loss and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity plans of the Company.

Particulars

Average past service (years)
Average age (years)

Interest on DBO

Particulars

Weighted Average Duration

No. of regular Employees
Total Monthly Salary (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars
for the year/period ended on

for the year/period ended on
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Amount Recognized in Statement of Assets & Liabilities

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Present Value of Obligation at the end :
16,47,930            1,33,091              
63,25,082            26,39,640            
79,73,012            27,72,731            

Amount Recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

15,75,960            7,46,564              
2,02,409              1,37,847              

17,78,369            8,84,411              

Amount Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

               1,20,545 1,20,545              
-                      -                      

1,20,545              1,20,545              

Expected Maturity Analysis of Defined Benefit Plan

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

16,47,930            1,33,091              
21,40,148            11,87,838             
41,84,934            14,51,802             
79,73,012            27,72,731            

For and on behalf on FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
LABS & Associates C2C Advanced Systems Limited
Chartered Accountants (formerly C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited)
FRN: 021131C CIN: L72200KA2018PLC110361

CA Rohit Gupta Lakshmi Chandra Murtaza Ali Soomar
Partner (Managing Director) (Director & CFO)
Membership No. 571943 DIN: 07436752 DIN: 05194435

Place: NOIDA
Date: 30th May 2025 Manjeet Singh

(Company Secretary)
PAN: DDSPS0240G

(Amount in INR)

As at

(Amount in INR)

As at

(Amount in INR)

for the year/period ended on

(Amount in INR)

As at

Current Liability

Particulars

Net Interest Cost

Total

Within One year
Between 1 year to 5 years
More than 5 years

Particulars

Acturial Gain/(Loss) for the year on PBO
Closing amount recognized in OCI outside 

Expenses recognized in Income Statement

Opening amount recognized in OCI outside
profit and Loss Account

Non Current Liability

Total Service Cost

Total Liability

Particulars

Particulars
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C2C Advanced Systems Limited
(Formerly known as C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited )
Notes to Ind AS Financial Statement
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. 29 (A) - Financial Instruments by Categories
 The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories were as follows :

Amortized Cost

Financial 
Instruments at 

Fair Value 
Through P&L 

Financial 
Instruments at 

Fair Value 
Through OCI

Amortized Cost

Financial 
Instruments at 

Fair Value 
Through P&L 

Financial 
Instruments at 

Fair Value 
Through OCI

Financial Assets:
Trade receivables 10,995.87             -                       -                       4,269.51              -                       -                       
Cash and cash equivalents 171.82                 -                       -                       1,540.52              -                       -                       
Non Current Financial Asset 158.61                 -                       -                       150.32                 -                       -                       
Other Financial Assets 2,380.72              -                       -                       747.29                 -                       -                       
Total Financial Assets 13,707.02             -                       -                       6,707.65              -                       -                       

Financial Liabilities:
Trade Payables 273.08                 -                       -                       217.79                 -                       -                       
Other Finanacial Liabilities 265.63                 -                       -                       162.67                 -                       -                       
Total Financial Liabilities 538.72                 -                       -                       380.46                 -                       -                       

Note No. 29 (B) - Risk Management

Financial Risk Management

Risk
Exposure arising 

from
Measurement 

Credit risk
Cash and Cash 
equivalents Trade 
Receivables

Ageing analysis

Liquidity risk
Trade payable 
and other 
financial liabilities

Rolling cash flow 
forecasts

Market Risk- Foreign exchange

Future 
Commercial 
Transaction 
Financial 
liabilities not 
denominated in 
Indian rupees

Sensitivity 
Analysis

(a) Credit Risk

(i) Trade Receivables

(ii) Financial assets other than trade receivables
Financial assets except trade debtors includes bank balances, term deposits, security deposit and receivable from related parties, etc

(b) Liquidity Risk

(c) Capital Management

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Particulars

The company is exposed to Interest rate risk, Credit risk, Collection risk and liquidity risk. Given the nature of operations, the company does 
not face any forex risk, commodity risk and other market risk aspects. The company has assigned the responsibility of managing these risks 
with the respective division heads as stated below.

Management

Diversification of Bank Deposits. 
Credit has been granted to all the 
entities having high credit 
worthiness and market reputation

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable price. The 
Company’s objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and liquidity requirements.

Short term liquidity requirements consists mainly of sundry creditors, expense and capital payable, employee dues etc. arising during the 
normal course of business as of each reporting date. We maintain a sufficient balance in cash and cash equivalents to meet our short term 
liquidity requirements. We assess short term liquidity requirements on a periodical basis and manage them through internal accruals. 
Company has not taken any loans from any of the sources. We don't have any long term financial liabilites. Processes and policies related to 
such risks are overseen by senior management

The Company’s objective in managing its capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to our 
shareholders. The Company considers the following components of its Balance Sheet to be managed capital: 1) Share Capital, 2) Share 
Premium and 3) Other Reserves comprising of Retained Earnings. The Company’s capital structure is based on the Managements assessment 
of the balances of key elements to ensure strategic decisions and day to day activities. The capital structure of the Company is managed with a 
view of the overall macro economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. The Company’s policy is to maintain a 
strong capital structure with a focus to mitigate all existing and potential risks to the Company, maintain shareholder, vendor and market 
confidence and sustain continuous growth and development of the Company. The Company’s focus is on keeping a strong total equity base to 
ensure independence, security, as well as high financial flexibility without impacting the risk profile of the Company. In order, to maintain or 
adjust the capital structure, the Company will take appropriate steps as may be necessary. The Company does not have any debt or financial 
covenants.

Availablity of regular internal 
accruals

Foreign currency risk is metigated 
as we are netting of our liability of 
import against our receivables 
against exports

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. The maximum exposure to the credit 
risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables. Accordingly, credit risk from trade receivables has been separately evaluated 
from all other financial assets in the following paragraphs.

Majority of the clients of the company are Government entities, with no history of defaults. Hence, credit risk on the trade receivables are 
neglible. The company takes adequate precaution in terms of evaluation of the creditworthiness of its direct clients. The track record of 
collection of Trade Receivables has been very healthy. The company also has a practice of obtaining confirmation on service provided from 
most of its clients before invoicing, and hence risk of subsequent non-collection is negligible.

Credit risk relating to bank balances, term deposits and its interest accurred is considered negligible because our counterparties are banks. We 
consider the credit quality of bank balances, term deposits and related interest accurred with such banks are subject to the regulatory oversight 
of the Reserve Bank of India to be good, and we review these banking relationships on an ongoing basis. There are no impairment provisions 
as at each reporting date against these financial assets. We consider all the above financial assets as at the reporting dates to be of good credit 
quality.

The amount of security deposit are lying with landlords of the leased premises and hence carries no risk exposure, and receivables from 
related party are of good credit quality as per past experience of the company
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C2C Advanced Systems Limited
(Formerly known as C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited )
Notes to Ind AS Financial Statement
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. 30 - Related Party Disclosures

(a) Names of related parties and related party relationship
Key Managerial Personnel  (KMP):
K.Ramesh Director
Murtaza Ali Soomar Director & CFO
Lakshmi Chandra Managing Director
Krishnamurthy Chandra Relative of Director
Hari Chandra Relative of Director
Manjeet Singh Company Secretary (from 19th Jan 2024)
Kishore Soni Independent Director
Shashi Gupta Independent Director
Parminder Jit Singh Pannu Independent Director
Neha Gupta Independent Director

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by KMP or their relatives:
PVR Multimedia Systems Pvt. Ltd. Promoter Company
C2C Innovations Pvt. Ltd. Promoter Company
Realtime Techsolutions Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary of Promoter Company
KTI Intelligent Systems Pvt Ltd Subsidiary of Promoter Company

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
 Loan received 
 PVR Multimedia Pvt. Ltd.                        -                          -   -                                         448.10                        -                   448.10 
 C2C Innovations Pvt. Ltd.                        -                          -   4,112.11                                    -                4,112.11                        -   

 Loan paid back/adjusted 
 Lakshmi Chandra                        -                     10.00                        -                          -                          -                     10.00 
 Hari Chandra                        -                     42.50                        -                          -                          -                     42.50 
 PVR Multimedia Pvt. Ltd.                        -                          -                          -                   828.85                        -                   828.85 

 Advances given 
 PVR Multimedia Pvt. Ltd.                        -                          -                     25.00                        -                     25.00                        -   
 Realtime Techsolutions Pvt. 
Ltd. 

                       -                          -                          -                   432.92                        -                   432.92 

 KTI Intelligent Systems Pvt 
Ltd 

                       -                          -                          -                   118.83                        -                   118.83 

 C2C Innovations Pvt. Ltd.                        -                          -                   286.03                    0.56                 286.03                    0.56 

 Advances Received back 
 Realtime Techsolutions Pvt. 
Ltd. 

                       -                          -                          -                     11.76                        -                     11.76 

 PVR Multimedia Pvt. Ltd.                        -                          -                     25.00                        -                     25.00                        -   

 Claim for Reimbursement of 
Expenses 
 Realtime Techsolutions Pvt. 
Ltd. 

                       -                          -                   153.10                        -                   153.10                        -   

 Sale of Goods/Services 
 Realtime Techsolutions Pvt. 
Ltd. 

                       -                          -                          -                   888.27                        -                   888.27 

 Finance Cost 
 PVR Multimedia Pvt. Ltd.                        -                          -                          -                     70.70                        -                     70.70 

 Director's Sitting Fee 
Kishore Soni                   12.00                        -                          -                          -                     12.00                        -   
Shashi Gupta                   12.00                        -                          -                          -                     12.00                        -   
Parminder Jit Singh Pannu                   12.00                        -                          -                          -                     12.00                        -   
Neha Gupta                    4.50                        -                          -                          -                      4.50                        -   

 Employee benefits expense 
 Salary/Remuneration Paid                        -                          -                          -                          -   
 Manjeet Singh                    6.09                    1.50                        -                          -                      6.09                    1.50 
 Laxmi Chandra                   51.13                        -                          -                          -                     51.13                        -   
 Murtaza Ali Soomar                   51.13                   32.24                        -                          -                     51.13                   32.24 
 K.Ramesh                   61.92                   66.44                        -                          -                     61.92                   66.44 

Total

(b) Related Party Transactions

Key Management Personnel
Transactions 

Enterprises owned or 
significantly influenced by KMP 

or their relatives
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31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Unsecured Loans 
 C2C Innovations Pvt. Ltd. -                     -                                  3,761.02                        -                3,761.02                        -   

Loans and advances
 C2C Innovations Pvt. Ltd.                        -                          -                          -                     65.06                        -                     65.06 
 Realtime Techsolutions Pvt. 
Ltd. 

                       -                          -                   713.92                 560.82                 713.92                 560.82 

 KTI Intelligent Systems Pvt 
Ltd 

                       -                          -                   118.83                 118.83                 118.83                 118.83 

 Debtors 
 Realtime Techsolutions Pvt. 
Ltd. 

                       -                          -                          -                   888.27                        -                   888.27 

Remuneration Payable
 Manjeet Singh                    0.48                    0.60                        -                          -                      0.48                    0.60 
 K.Ramesh                    2.96                    4.42                        -                          -                      2.96                    4.42 
 Lakshmi Chandra                    3.00                    2.00                        -                          -                      3.00                    2.00 
 Murtaza Ali Soomar                    3.00                        -                          -                          -                      3.00                        -   

Note: NSE had conducted an independent limited review of the company and report of such audit is available on NSE Portal. As per 
said report, certain customers of the company were termed as related parties. However, in view of the management, those parties are 
not related to the company. Evidences/documents pertaining to company's claim have been submitted with NSE which are under 
consideration.

Key Management Personnel
Particulars

(c) Outstanding balances at the end of the period

Enterprises owned or 
significantly influenced by KMP 

or their relatives
Total
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C2C Advanced Systems Limited
(Formerly known as C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited )
Notes to Ind AS Financial Statement
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. 31 - Details of dues to MSME as defined under MSMED Act, 2006

Sr. No. Particulars
As at 

Mar 31, 2025
As at 

Mar 31, 2024

1
The principal amount and interest thereon remaining 
unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each 
acounting period

a) Principal Amount due to MSME 16.44                -               
b) Interest amount due on above -               

16.44               -              

2

The amount of interest paid by the buyers in terms of 
section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the 
amounts of payment made to the supplier beyond 
the appointed day during each accounting period

-               

3

The amount of interest due and payable for the 
period of delay in making payment (which have 
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
period) but without adding the interest specified 
under the MSMED Act 2006

-               

4
The amount of interest accrued and remaining 
unpaid at the end of each accounting period

-               

5

The amount of further interest remaining due and 
payable even in the succeeding period,
until such date when the interest due as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise for
the purpose of disallowance as a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED
Act 2006

-               

Note No. 32 - Disclosures Pursuant to Ind AS 116 - Leases
A. The Company applied the available practical expedients wherein it -
a. Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.
b. Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately before the date of initial application.
c. Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months of the date of initial application.
d. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.
e. Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contained options to extend or terminate the lease.

B.

C. The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 10%.

Sr. No. Particulars
As at 

Mar 31, 2025
As at 

Mar 31, 2024
1 Depreciation on Right to Use Asset (Refer Note-1) 109.50              74.90           
2 Interest Expenses on Lease Liability 45.05                7.13             
3 Expenses related to short term lease 38.40                -               

Total

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short term leases that have a 
lease term of twelve months or
less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these 
leases are recognized as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.
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C2C Advanced Systems Limited
(Formerly known as C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited )
Notes to Ind AS Financial Statement
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. 33 - Ratio Analysis

S.No Ratio
 As at 

Mar 31, 2025 
 As at 

Mar 31, 2024 
% change from Mar 

24 to Mar 25
1 Current Ratio (Times)
a Current Assets                 22,139.93                    8,017.02 
b Current Liabilities                   5,438.34                      911.39 
c (Current Assets / Liabilities)                         4.07                          8.80 -53.7%

2 Debt-Equity Ratio (Times)
a Total Debt                   3,761.02                             -   
b Total Equity                 19,758.94                    7,645.72 
c (Total Debt / Total Equity)                         0.19                             -   0.0%

3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio (Times)
a EBITDA - Taxes                   3,150.25                    1,436.40 
b Principal Repayment + Interest                            -                          71.03 
c ((EBITDA-Taxes) / (Principal Repayment+Interest))                            -                            0.05 0.0%

4 Return on Equity Ratio (%)
a Profit After Tax                   2,883.95                    1,227.69 
b Average Shareholders' Equity                   9,879.47                    3,949.20 
c (PAT / Average Shareholders' Equity) 29.19% 31.09% -6.1%

5 Inventory Turnover Ratio (Times)
a Revenue from Operations                 11,511.11                    4,105.89 
b Average Inventories                   3,268.81                      392.70 
c (Revenue from Operations / Average Inventories)                              4                             10 -66.3%

6 Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (Times)
a Revenue from Operations                 11,511.11                    4,105.89 
b Average Trade Receivables                   7,632.69                    2,584.27 
c (Revenue from Operations / Average Trade Receivables)                         1.51                          1.59 -5.1%

7 Trade Payable Turnover Ratio (Times)
a Net Purchases                 10,316.61                    1,488.96 
b Average Trade Payables                     245.44                      297.58 
c (Net Purchases / Average Trade Payables)                       42.03                          5.00 740.1%

8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio (Times)
a Revenue from Operations                 11,511.11                    4,105.89 
b Average Working Capital                     11,904                        3,457 
c (Revenue from Operations / Average Working Capital)                         0.97                          1.19 -18.6%

9 Net Profit Ratio (%)
a Profit After Tax                   2,883.95                    1,227.69 
b Revenue from Operations                 11,511.11                    4,105.89 
c (PAT / Revenue from Operations) 25.05% 29.90% -16.2%

10 Return on Capital Employed  (%)
a Earning before Interest & Taxes                   4,203.96                    1,738.26 
b Capital Employed 23,519.96               7,645.72                  
c (EBIT / Capital Employed) 17.87% 22.74% -21.4%

11 Return on Investment  (%) NA NA NA

Note 33.1 - Comment on Analytical Ratios

a) % Change from 31st March 2024 to 31st March 2025
1 Decline in Current Ratio is due to increase in short term borrowings (from related parties) which lead to increase in current liabilities.
2 Variance in Inventory turnover ratio is because of high amount of inventory held by the company as on 31st March 2025.

3

Any change in Ratios Variance by more than 25% as compared to previous year is explained below

Variance in Trade Payable Ratio is because the scale of operations of the company has increased thereby increasing the purchases 
however corresponding trade payables have not increased because of sufficient availability of funds for working capital. 
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C2C Advanced Systems Limited
(Formerly known as C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited )
Notes to Ind AS Financial Statement
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. 34 - Other Statutory Information

a.

b. The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.
c. The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
d. The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

e.

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company;
ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

f.

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company;
ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

g.

h.

i.

j. The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the financial year.

k.

Note No. 35 - Other Information

a.

b.

c.

d. Previous Year Figures have been regrouped and recasted wherever necessary.

e.

f. Financial information of the USA branch are certified by CPA.

For and on behalf on FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
LABS & Associates C2C Advanced Systems Limited
Chartered Accountants (formerly C2C Advanced Systems Private Limited)
FRN: 021131C CIN: L72200KA2018PLC110361

CA Rohit Gupta Lakshmi Chandra Murtaza Ali Soomar Manjeet Singh
Partner (Managing Director) (Director & CFO) (Company Secretary)
Membership No. 571943 DIN: 07436752 DIN: 05194435 PAN: DDSPS0240G

The company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding 
any Benami property.

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the 
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

The Company doesn't have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions 
of the Income Tax.

Balances of parties under Trade Payables, Other Current Liabilities, Long Term Loans & Advances, Trade Receivables, Short 
Term Loans & Advances and Other Current Assets are subject to confirmation.

In the opinion of the Directors, Trade Receivables, Short Term Loans & Advances and Other Current Assets have been valued at 
which they are shown in the Statement of Assets & Liabilities if realised in the ordinary course of business.

GST Inputs and Outputs are considered in the books of accounts w.r.t. the purchases / inputs and sales / outputs made during 
the year on which the assessee is eligible / liable by the management. However difference if any, resulting at the time of GST 
Audit or any other development or information later on, is provided for in the year in which such difference is pointed out.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank and financial institution or government or any government authority.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

The company doesn't hold any immovable property, other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are 
duly executed in favour of the lessee.

NSE had ordered an independent limited review of the company which was conducted by BDO ("Limited Reviewer"). Report of 
such review is available on public domain. Company has submitted its reply with NSE on the objections raised by limited 
reviewer and the same is under consideration by NSE.


